Lucas Clarke
“

From: Georgia Smith

Sent: Thursday, 22 October 2015 5:21 PM

To: Georgia Smith

Subject: FW: Draft contract and conditions of contract
Attachments: ContractDetailsv2.doc; GeneralContractConditionsV2.pdf

Georgia Smith

A/Events Manager, Events Coordination
Strategic Engagement and Protocol
Department of the Premier and Cabinet

P 0730039119 M
Queensland Executive Building, Level 2, 100 Gecrge Street, 8rishane QLD 4000
Government PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

- White Ribbon Day Breakfas
) 25 Nerveriinge 3615 3. Sofilel Brisbiaric o

torwe yéur suppn;: j,n ‘ending Yiofence agalrist
Tiéksts-avallatle vla Evenlbrile -

From: Mandy Marquis

Sent: Thursday, 22 October 2015 8:49 AM

To: Georgia Smith <Geocrgia.Smith@premiers.qfd.gov.au>
Subject: Draft contract and conditions of contract

Hi Georgia

As discussed yesterday | have attached the tempiate centract and the conditions of contract (T&C’s).

Populate what you can and then I can review the contract, if there is anything that you are unsure of or any
questions please don’t hesitate to contact me and we can work through the contract together.

A purchase order should be raised for ali purchases over $5,000.
Refer to the Corporate Procurement Policy below:

http://dpcintranet/docs/DPC Documents/Procurement Corporate Policy.trs
http://dpcintranet/docs/DPC Documents/Procurement - Agency Guidelines.tr5

Cheers

Mandy
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Mandy Marquis

Principal Procurement Advisor
Corporate Governance

Department of the Premier and Cabinet

. PO730039064 M_____ |

Quensland Executive Building, Level 1, 100 George Street, Brisbane QLD 4000
Government PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002
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Queensland Goverrment

Contract Details
DPC-35-2015-Title

<Customer name>

<Supplier to insert Supplier name and ASN>

The Department of the Premier & Cabinet<<Customer Name>> and <<insert Supplier name=>> DPC-35-2015
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Contract Details (v2.0) Page 3 of 11

1 Introduction

This whole document forms part of the Contract.

The Supplier must complete all sections of this document. The Supplier must not make any
changes to the structure of this document. If the Supplier does not agree with any sections
of this document that have been completed by the Customer, the Supplier mustidentify its

proposed changes to the Contract in section 3.4 (Contract departures — Supplier Changes).

Changes which do not comply with the requirements in this section do not form part of the
Contract

2 General information

A

1 Customer Name: Department of the Premier-and Cabinet

ABN : 65959415 158

2 Customer contact Contact person: <<ingert>>

details
: : Position: <=insert>>
Street address: <<insert>>
Postal address: <<insert>>
Email: <<insert>>

All notices and other communication relating to the Contract are to be sent
to the Customer at the details set out in this item, or any updated details
that the Customer provides to the Supplier in writing.

3 Supplier “| Name:
S| 7| ABN or ACN:

4 Supplier contact Contact person:

dgi_:ails _-| Position:
Street address:
. + Postal address:
Email:

All notices and other communication relating to the Contract are to be sent
to the Supplier at the details set out in this item, or any updated details that
the Supplier provides fo the Supplier in writing.

5 | Subcontractor(s): Not Applicable

The Department of the Premier & Cabinet<<Customer Name>> and <<insert Supplier name>> DPC-35-2015
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Page 4 of 11

Start date: <<jinsert>>
End date: <<insert>>

Extension options: _<<insert (e.g. 2. x 1 year)>>

The cap on liability is three (3) times the total of aii prices payable under
the contract.

If the Supplier seeks to limit its liakiiity in accordance with a binding
scheme under the Professional Standards Act 2004 (Qld) then specify
the scheme below and the limits ot [fability that apply:

Binding Scheme applicable: Mot Applicable

Summary of liability cap: Not Applicable

Insurance,

Workers compensaticn insurance as required by law
Public liability and products liability insurance:
Minimum amount. 35 Miilion

Professionai indeminity insurance:

Minimum amotint; $5 Million

Othei nsurances:

Customer inputs

<10

Site details

The Supplier is to insert details of any Customer resources that it will
niged in order to perform the Contract. For example, equipment,
premises access, information, documents and Personnel.

Delivery address for Goods: <<insert/delete as applicable>>
Location(s) for providing Services: <<insert/delete as applicable>>

The Supplier will perform the Services at the following location(s):

11

Aufhorications

Not Applicable

The Department of the Premier & Cabinet<<Customer Name>> and <<insert Supplier name>> DPC-35-2015
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Contract Details (v2.0) Page 5 of 11

o o

.| Not Applicable

requirements

13 | Conflict of Interest . | Ni

3 Terms and conditions of the Contract

3.1 Definitions and interpretation

The definitions and rules of interpretation applicable to the Contract are available on the
Department of Housing and Public Works website, current as at Octoher 2015.

3.2 Base terms
The General Contract Conditions apply to the Contract. A copy of these terms is attached, current

as at October 2015.

3.3 Contract departures — Customer chianges

Not Applicable

3.4 Contract departures — Supplier changes

Changes made in accordance with this section that are agreed between the parties will
override any other section of this documzit.

" If the Supplier proposes any additional clauses or any changes to the base terms (identified
in section 0), as modified by any Cusiomer changes in section 0, the Supplier is to set them
out here.

The Supplier must set outl Supplier changes in the requested format and clearly indicate
which part of the Coniraci it is proposing to change (including clause numbers) using the
table below. Repeat rows as required.

The Supplier is to respornd to any Customer changes from section 0 which it does not agree
with, in this secticn.

Repeat as required.

Q' Reason for change Change proposed

requested
Supplier insert clause | Supplier to explain the reason Supplier to insert alternative position or
it wishes to amend i why a change is necessary. proposed amendments to the clause.

The Department of the Premier & Cabinet<<Customer Name>> and <<insert Supplier name>> DPC-35-2015
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Contract Details (v2.0) Page 6 of 11

4 Forming the Contract

4.1 Acknowiedgements and certifications

The Supplier:

(a) agrees to provide the Goods, Services and other Deliverables to the Custeiner on the terms
described in the Contract.

(b) certifies that it has read, understands, and complies with all the requirements of the
Contract.

(c) acknowledges that only proposed Contract changes which comply with sections 0 and 3.4
form part of the Contract.

(d) represents that all the information provided by it and referenced in the Contract is complete,
accurate, up to date and not misleading in any way.

(e) acknowledges that the Customer is relying on the information provided by the Supplier and
referenced in the Contract in entering into the Contract.

() acknowledges that the Customer may suffer damage if any of that information is
incomplete, inaccurate, out of date or misleading in any way.

The Department of the Premier & Cabinet<<Customer Name>> and <<insert Supplier name>> DPC-35.9015
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Contract Details (v2.0) Page 7 of 11

4.2 Forming the Contract

4.2.1 Agreement by Supplier

The Supplier will sign in this section. By signing, the Supplier is offering to enter the Contract on
the terms set out in this document. If the Supplier-does not execute this document itself, it must (if
the Customer requests) provide adequate evidence that the signatory is properly authorised to
execute this agreement.

If the parties agree any changes to this document after the date of the Supplier’s signature (but
before the Customer accepts the Supplier's offer as described below), the Sunpiier and Customer
will prepare a new version of the document incorporating the agreed changes, which will replace
this document. The Supplier will sign the new document, offering to enter tive Contract on the
amended terms.

Name of SUppIrer _
by its authorised representative, in the
presence of: :

)
)
)
} Signature of authorisea iepresentative '
} By executing this agreement the signatory warrants that
} the signatory is duly authorised to execute this agreement
}. on behalf oithe Suppller :
................................................................ }
)
)
)
)
)
)

l'os. ion ofauthorlsed representatlve '

Add ress

4.2.2 Agreement by Customer

The Customer may accept the Supplier’s offer either by signing in this section, or separately

confirming to the Supplier in writing that the Customer accepts the Supplier's offer.

Date .coocverier i
EXECUTED for and on behalf of;
)
The Department of ihe Preriier & Gabinet ) Signature of authorised representative.
by its authorised represantative, in the ) By executing this offer the signatory warrants that the
presence of: 1) : o ) signatory is duly authorised to submit this offer on behalf of
) the Customer
Slgnature of wn'ness e
} Name of authorised representative (block letters)
............................................................... ) '
Name of witness (block letters) e e e
) Position of authorised representative
............................................................... ) '
Address )

The Department of the Premier & Cabinet<<Customer Name>> and <<insert Supplier name>> DPC-35-2015
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Contract Details (v2.0) Page 8 of 11

Schedule 1 - Requirements

The Supplier must provide the Services specified below to the Customer, in accordance with the
Reguirements described in this Schedule.

1. Requirements for Goods

'<<Cu'*ete'mer to insert details/description of goods that will be supplied.under the’

descnblng the requlrements) -and the Supplier (e. g descnblng the goods thz *W|II be supplled) >>

2. Requirements for Services

Customer (e g. ‘
services that will bé pe

n out services then specify the detailed scope. of those services

seek legal advice for assistance

3. Key Personnel

The Supplier must provide the names and contact details for all Key Personnel that the Supplier
intends to use, and summariss the role of each Key Personnel and key obligations they will be
responsible for. The Supplier must separately provide a copy of all Key Personnel CVs. Repeat as

necessary.
o [ Ema
Committed leve

[Name] Ph: [Description] [Number of hours,

. percentage of full-time
[Position] Email: , equivalent, or other level of
commitment to the
Contract]

4. Other Requirements

The Départment &f the Premier & Cabinet<<Customer Name>> and <<insert Supplier name>> DPC+352015
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Schedule 2 — Price and Payment Terms

<<If the Customer has specific requirements in the way it wants Suppliers to submit pricing (e.g. by
completlng a table, or. a pricing template in Excel format) then attach the pricing schedule or msert

the table the Supplier is to complete The Customer should amend this section to set out any other
pricing requirements not already addressed.>>

If the Customer has provided a specific document/template for the Supplier to use to submii pricing
information (e.g. Excel spreadsheect), then the Supplier must submit pricing details in the required
format. If not otherwise specified, Suppliers may complete this section in any appropriate format, but
Suppliers must address all items.

2.1 Price

The Supplier must itemise all amounts that the Customer s to pay in relation to the Contract, as well
as totals. The Supplier is to identify the Pricing method (e.g. lump sum, fixed price, time and
materials including rate card). The GST component is to be separately identified.

Where expenses will be charged, the Supplier must provide an estimated forecast for expenses over
the life of a Contract, and explain any assumptions that those calctilations are based on. If the
Supplier cannot forecast expenses, the Supplier must includz details of how expenses will be
calculated.

2.2 Price reviews

If the Supplier proposes that the Prices will be changed diring the term of the Contract, the Supplier
must clearly set out the times that the review will occitrand the Price review mechanism.

2.3 Payment plan/milestones
The Supplier may invoice the Customer after successful achievement of the milestones as follows:

The Supplier is to describe when Customers wili-be invoiced for Goods/Services provided to
Customers, (e.g. the timetable for payments, the amount of each payment and the Deliverables that
the payments relate fo).

2.4 Payment methods

The Supplier is to describe how the Customer can make payment (including whether corporate credit
card is accepted).

2.5 Discounts or rebates

The Supplier is to set out deta)ls of any applicable discounts (e.g. trade discounts, early payment
discounts, volume discotnts) or rebates.

2.6  Other pricing information

The Supplier mustsel out any other matters which may affect the Prices. The Prices will not be
changed i response to any event which is not described here.

The Department of the Premier & Cabinst<<Customer Name>> and <<insert Supplier name>> DPC-35-2015

RTID327.pdf - Page Number: 11 of 240




Contract Details (v2.0)

Page 10 of 11

Schedule 3 - Performance Measurement

This Schedule describes how the Supplier's performance will be measured under the Contract,

including:

» Key performance indicators, minimum service level requirements, acceptance criteria or other
performance measures proposed by the Customer;

e Details of how KPIs will be measured {e.g. identify reports)

* Consequences if performance is unsatisfactory.

<<Customer to insert details of performance measurement requirements. Exampig table provided

below:>>

Key Performance Indicators / Service Levels

Nameof | Whybeing | Whatis How will be | Weeidly/ Who Minimum | What happens
Measure #1 | measured | being measured Monthiy/ measures | acceptable | if minimum
measured. | {e.g. montily-| Quarterly | compliance - | score acceptable
Must be reports) Half yearly/ | Supplier or score isn't
objective and Yearly Principal? met? Credit,
quantifiable Where wil Tebate,
the data discount, other
come from to consequence?
measure
compliance?
Name of
Measure #2

RTID327.pdf - Page Number: 12 of 240
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Schedule 4 — Governance

This Schedule sets out governance arrangements applicable to the Contract.
4.1 Reporting requirements
The Supplier must prov'ide the following reports:

<<Customer to insert details of any reports the Supplier must provide to the Customer {or vice versa),
including what must be included in the report, format requirements, frequency, due dates. If reporting
requirements are not known then insert “To be agreed between the parties”.>>

If no reporting is required under the Contract then insert “There is no reporting to be provided under the
Contract.">>

The Customer must provide the following reports:

<<If the Customer is required to provide any reports to the Supplier. then insert including what must be
included in the report format requirements, frequency, due dates, If reporting requirements are not

known then insert “To be agreed between the parties’. Delete if not applicable>>
4.2 Meeting requirements
The Supplier must attend the following meetings:

<< If the Supplier is reqmr_ed__ to attend formal or informai review meetings with the Customer (e.g. to
review performance), insel details including how frequently, the location of the meetings, who must
aftend and (if known) minimum agenda items. Delate if not applicable>>

4.3 Escalation of issues

Any issues that should arise that cannot be settled between the parties, should be bought to the
attention of Ms Patrice Fogarly, A/Executive Director, Corporate Governance, Department of the
Premier and Cabinet.

44 Other governance or quality assurance requirements

Not Applicable

<<Customer Name>> and <<insert Supplier name>> <<Contract name / reference no.>>
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4 Queensland

Government

General Contract Conditions

For general goods and services

These General Contract Conditions are designed to be used in connection with the Contract Details.

1 The Contract

1.1 When Contract is formed

A Contract will be formed between the Customer and
the Supplier on the earlier of the date when:

(a) the Customer accepts the Supplier's offer in
writing; or

(b}  the authorised representatives of both parties
have signed the appropriate section of the
Details; or

(cy ifthe Contract is formed under an SOA, the
Contract is formed in accordance with the SOA
Conditions.

This Contract may consist of a number of counterparts
and if sg, the counterparts taken together constitute
one document.

1.2 Interpretation

The definitions and rules of interpretation apply to this
Contract and are available online at

www.hpw.qld.gov.au/Procurement (terms and
conditions).

1.3 Hierarchy

If there is any inconsistency between the documeants
which make up the Contract, then the fallowing will
prevail in descending order of precedence:

(a) the contract departures section-of the Details;

(b) the Schedules to the Datails (excluding any
document incorporated by reference);

(c} the General Contract Cenditions

(dy the Details {excluding the contract departures
section of the Details;

{e) any documentincorporated by reference.
2 Non exclusivity

Unless expressly stated otherwise in the Details, the
Customer may engage other suppliers to (or itself)
provide goods, services and other deliverables the
same as or similar to the Deliverables.

Great state. Great opportunity.

3 Term

The Contract starts on the stait date in the Details and
continues for the period set cut in-the Details,
including any extensich options which are exercised.

The Customer must give notice of its intention to
exercise any extensiorioption.

4 Supplier to provide Deliverables

The Customerappoints the Supplier to provide the
Deliverables. Thie'Supplier accepts the appointment.

5 ‘Suppiier general obligations
The Supplier:'

{a) - (time) must meet all due dates specified in the
Details or otherwise agreed, and perform all
other obligations promptly;

'b)  (delay) will promptly notify the Customer if it
believes it will not be able to meet any due
date;

(¢) (Deliverables) must provide the Deliverables in
accordance with the Contract and all Laws;

(d) (Requirements) must meet, and ensure that
the Deliverables meet, the Requirements, and
meet or exceed the performance measures
specified in the Details {if anyy);

(&) (standards) must ensure that all Deliverables
are of a high quality, professional standard and
fit for their usual purpose and any other
purpose disclosed by the Customer;

il (protection) must protect peocple and property,
avoid unnecessary interference with passage of
people and vehicles, and prevent nuisance and
unreasonable noise and disturbance;

(g) (policies) must comply with all Customer
policies, codes of conduct, rules, standards and
procedures which apply to the Site or the
Customer's Personnel or use of the Customer
Inputs, all Site policies and workplace health
and safety policies applicable to the Site, and
all other Customer policies listed in the
Requirements. If the Customer introduces new
policies relevant to the Supplier's obligations

SN R % o= i Government
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General Contract Conditions
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under this Contract, or amends a relevant
policy, the Supplier will comply with the new or
amended policies. Copies of the relevant
policies are available on request;

provide evidence that it has complied with this
clause, if the Customer asks;

(p)  (security requirements) must, if specified in
the Details, provide a bank guarantee,

(h} (directions) must comply with all reasonable performance guarantee or other specified
directions of the Customer in relation to the security to guarantee the proper performance of
Supplier's performance of the Contract; the Supplier's obligations under the Contract.

The security must be in & format.acceptable to

(  (Customer Inputs) must take care of Customer the Customer acting reasonably. The security
Inputs, and only use Customer inputs for the must meet all additional conditions specified in
purpose of performing the Contract, to the the Details. The Customer will not have any
extent necessary to perform the Contract, and liability to the Suppiier {whether in negligence or
in accordance with the Details. If the Supplier otherwise) in connection with the Customer’s
loses or damages any Customer InpUtS, the enforcement gfthe Security;

Supptier will, at the election of the Customer,

promptly replace such Customer Inputs or pay (g) (further assurances) do anything and execute
the Customer the reasonable replacement cost any document that the Customer reasonably
of such Customer Inpuis. As between the asks, to giveeffect to this Contract;

Supplier and the Customer, the Customer )

retains all right, title and interest (including all (n  (reports) must provide reports as and when
Intellectual Property Rights) in Customer Inputs; reasonably requested by the Customer;

() (act reasonably) must act reasonably in (s) ~(compeiitive neutrality) if the Supplier is a
exercising all of its rights under the Contract; government owned business, local government,

or Commonwealth, State or Territory or

(k) (cooperation) must cooperate with the authority, price its offer to comply with the
Customer's Personnel and other suppliers to competitive neutrality principles of the
the Customer who provide goods and services Supplier’s jurisdiction;
relating to the Deliverables; .

t) (expertise} warrants that it has the necessary

{ (Laws) must comply with all Laws and ensure skills and expertise to properly perform the
that use of the Deliverables by the Customer as Contract, and all its Personnel performing
contemplated in the Contract will comply with ali duties in relation to this Contract are competent
Laws; and have the necessary skills and expertise to

properly perform the duties allocated to them

(I"I'I) (records) must create and maintain recctds of Concerning this Contract; and
its performance of this Contract in accerdance
with usual industry practice for provision of {u} (access and inspection) on reasonable prior
goods and services similar to the Deliverables. written notice from the Customer, must give the
The Supplier will give the Custorrzr reasonable Customer reasonable access to the Suppiier's
access to records on reasonable raquest; premises where the Deliverables are being

) performed or produced, and to Supplier

(n)  (insurance) must at its cost, lake out and documentation, records and Personnel, to
maintain the insurances described’in the Details enable the Customer to verify that the Supplier
with an insurer authorised a2nd licensed to is complying with its obligations under the
operate in Australia, or reascrable commercial Contract, and will promptly address any non-
terms. The Supplier must promptly notify the compliances identified by the Customer and
Customer if any policy is cancelled or there is notified to the Supplier.
any significant chiange in any of those policies.

The Supplied must maintain run-off insurance 6 Terms and conditions specific to
for a minimum period of 6 years after the .

Contract ends; for all insurance policies which Goods and Deliverables

are m'alntame_d 98 claims _rr_lade basis. The The following terms and conditions apply to the supply
Supplier it ust provide a certificate of currency of Goods and to Deliverables which the Supplier

for each paiicy. If the Supplier does not take out develops of creates in performing the Services:

or maintain these policies, the Customer may

take out those policies and the Supplier will be (@) (condition) all Goods must be new, unused
responsible for the Customer's cost of dOiI"Ig 80, and of recent origin;

(o) (authorisations) must obtain and maintain the (b) (test) the Supplier must inspect and test all
authorisations described in the Details and any Goods and other Deliverables that will be
other licences, permits, permissions and delivered in a material form to ensure that they
authorities necessary for the Supplier to comply with the Requirements, before delivery;
perform the Contract. The Supplier must

Version 2.0 Published December 2014
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(¢) (manufacturer warranties) the Supplier must
assign any manufacturer's warranty to the
Customer, where possible to do so, and must
inform the Customer where it is not possible to
do so;

(d) (delivery) the Supplier must deliver the Goods
or other relevant Deliverables to the Site, in
accordance with the Customer's instructions. If
the Supplier asks, the Customer will confirm in
writing that the Deliverables have been
received;

(e) (acceptance) acceptance of the Goods by the
Customer does not relieve the Supplier of any
of its obligations under the Contract;

{f (packaging} the Supplier must adequately pack
and protect Goods to withstand transit and
storage, and provide a packing note with the
Goods;

{3) (rejected Goods) if the Customer rejects
Goods for non-conformity with Requirements,
and the Supplier does not repossess the
rejected Goods within 30 days of notice of
rejection, the Customer may sell or dispose of
the Goods, at the Customer's cost. The
Customer is under no obligation to pay for
rejected Goods and the Supplier will promptly
refund any amounts pre-paid for rejected
Goods within 10 Business Days of the
Customer’s rejection;

{(h) (risk) risk in Goods and any other Deliverables
which are provided in a material form will
transfer to the Customer when delivered to the
delivery address set out in the Details in
accordance with the Customer's delivery
instructions;

(i} (title) title in Goods and any other Deliverables
which are provided in a material form will
transfer on the earlier of the delivery or
payment of the applicable Frice;

() (no encumbrance) the Supplier warrants that
the Goods and any other Deliverables will not
be subject to any encumbrance or interest,
except for an encumibrance or interest which
arises by operation of a Law that cannot be
excluded by contract; and

(k) (associated information) the Supplier will
provide with the Coods any information, data or
manuazis reguired for the Customer to use,
maintain, apair, install or operate the Goods.

7 Subcontracting and Personnel

7.1 Subcontracting

The Supplier may only subcontract any part of its
obligations under this Contract to subcontractors
identified in the Details or with the Customer’s prior

written consent. The Customer will not unreasonably
withhold consent, but may give consent subject to
reasonable conditions.

7.2 Perscnnel

(a) (responsibility) the Supplier must ensure that
its Personnel comply with all the obligations of
the Supplier under this Contract, and the
Supplier is fully responsiblefor all.acts and
omissions of its Personnel, as though they were
acts or omissions of tha Supplier.

{(b) (not Customer empiovees) the Supplier is not,
and Supplier Persornel are not, employees of
the Customer.

{c) (removal) if the Customer reasonably requests,
the Supplier will promptly remove from
Customer premises and/or the performance of
this Coniract, any Perscnnel used in
perfoirnance of the Contract, and replace them
with other Personnel acceptable to the
Customer, at no additional cost to the
Customer.

7.3 Wey Personnel
In/providing the Services the Supplier must:

{a) - ensure that the Key Personnel perform the
roles allocated to them in the Details;

(b)  not remove or replace any Key Personnel
without the Customer’s prior written consent,
except for serious illness, incapacity or death;

(c)  promptly notify the Customer if any Key
Personnel is unavailable to perform his or her
allocated role for any reason; and

(d) ensure that any replacement Key Personnel
have equivalent or superior skills, qualifications
and experience, and promptly provide
information reasonably requested about any
Key Personnel or proposed replacement Key
Personnel, including the curriculum vitae for
each relevant individual.

The Customer may reject any proposed replacement
Key Perscnnel, in which case the Supplier must
promptly propose an alternative.

8 Price

8.1 Pricing all inclusive

Unless otherwise stated in the Details, the Price is
inclusive of all charges, expenses and overheads, and
all taxes and duties, except for GST. If this Contract
requires the Supplier to do or provide anything, and
there is no separate Price for performing that
obligation, the Supplier will comply with the obligation
at no additional cost. The Supplier must not invoice
the Customer, and the Customer is not required to
pay, any amount except for the Price.

Version 2.0

Published December 2014
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8.2 Expenses

The Customer will not reimburse any travel or
accommodation expenses except where:

{a) the Customer requests that the Supplier travel
away from the agreed service location;

(b) the Supplier complies with the Customers
travel policy (a copy of which will be provided
on request);

{c) the Customer has approved the expenses in
writing before they are incurred; and

(d) the Supplier provides satisfactory evidence of
payment.

8.3 Price review

The Supplier may review the Prices in accordance
with any Price review mechanism in the Details. No
other Price change or new Price will be effective
unless the Customer agrees in writing.

9 Invoicing and payment

The Supplier may invoice the Customer at the times
and, where applicable, in the amounts set out in the
Details. The Supplier will ensure that each invoice
includes adequate information for the Customer to
verify that the invoice is accurate, and will provide
supporting documentation reasonably requested by
the Customer. The Customer is not required to pay
any invoice that does not comply with this clause.

Unless expressly stated otherwise in the Details, tha
Supplier may not:

(a) invoice the Customer (and the Customer.is not
required to pay) for Deliverables'until the
relevant Deliverables have been provided, and
the Deliverables meet the Requiremenis; or

(b} charge or pass through any fees, ¢costs or
charges associated with a payment method.

The Customer will pay each correctly rendered tax
invoice within 30 days of receipt. ‘

The Customer may set off any aimounts payable by
the Supplier to the Custarner against amounts
payable to the Supplier by ike Customer.

The Customer may withhold payment of any amount
which it disputes in'good faith, until the dispute is
resolved arid it j& determined that the amount is
payable,

10 GST

(a) (construction) In this clause 10, words and
expressions which have a defined meaning in
GST Law have the same meaning as in the GST
Law.

(b} (GST exclusive) Unless expressly stated, all
moneys or other sums payable or consideration to
be provided under this Contract are exclusive of
GST.

{c) (payment of GST) If GST is payable on any

supply made under this Contract, the recipient will
pay to the supplier an amount equal to the GST
payable on the supply at the same time that the
consideration for the supply/is to be provided
under this Contract.

{d) (tax invoice) The supplierrnust deliver a tax
invoice or an adjustment ricte to the recipient
before the supplieris entitled to payment of an
amount under ciause 10(z). The recipient can
withhold payment of the/amount until the supplier
provides a tax invoice or adjustment note as
appropriate.

(e) (adjustment event) If an adjustment event arises
in respect of a taxable supply made by a supplier
under this Contract, the amount payable by the
recipient under clause 10{c) will be recalculated to
reflect the adjustment event and a payment will be
made by the recipient to the supplier or by the
slipglier to the recipient as the case requires.

i7) (reimbursements) Where a party is required
under this Contract to pay or reimburse an
expense or cutgoing of another party, the amount
to be paid or reimbursed by the first party will be
the sum of:

{i) the amount of the expense or outgoing less
any input tax credits in respect of the expense
or outgoing to which the other party, orto
which the representative member for a GST
group of which the other party is a member, is
entitled; and

(i) if the payment or reimbursement is subject {0
GST, an amount equal to that GST.

11 Liability

{a) (contribution) neither party will be liable to the
other, (whether in contract, tort including
negligence or otherwise) in connection with the
Contract, for loss or damage to the extent that
the other party contributed to the loss or
damage.

(b} {(cap on liability) the maximum aggregate
liability of a party to the other party, whether in
contract, tort (including negligence) or
ctherwise in connection with the Contract, is
limited to the amount of the cap on liability in
the Details.

{c) (exclusions from cap) the cap on liability does
not apply to liability in relation to:

(i} personal injury, including sickness, injury or
death;
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(i) loss of, or damage to, tangible property;

(i) Intellectual Property Rights or Moral Rights
infringement; or

{iv) an indemnity,

and any payments in relation to those forms of
liability will not deplete the cap on liability.

(d) (mitigation) a party who suffers loss or
damage must mitigate its loss. The other party
will not be responsible for any loss, damage or
expenses to the extent that the injured party
could have avoided or reduced the amount of
the loss, damage or expense, by taking
reasonable steps to mitigate its loss.

(e} (binding scheme) despite any other condition
of the Contract, the Supplier's liability under the
Contract is limited to the extent necessary to
comply with a scheme that is in force and
applies to the Supplier under the Professional
Standards Act 2004 (Qld) as specified in the
Details.

12 Indemnity

The Supplier releases, discharges and indemnifies the
Custorner and its Personnel from and against any
Claim that may be brought against or made upon or
incurred by any of them {whether in contract, tort
including negligence, or otherwise) in connection with
any:

(a) failure to comply with applicable Law by, the
Supplier or its Personnel;

(b)  Wilful Default or Wilful Misconduct;

(¢} claim of Intellectual Property Rights or Moral
Rights infringement relating to this Goniract or
the Deliverables;

(d)y  breach of any warranty given in'this document;
or

() any Claim by a third party retating to this
Contract,

except to the extent that the Customer or its
Personnel caused or.contributed to the Claim.

13 Information

{a) The Suppiier iz responsible for making its own
invesfigation-and assessment about all matters
relevant {o'the Contract, including the
Requirements, the accuracy of all information
and documents provided by or on behalf of the
Customer, and all cther matters relevant to the
Supplier's decision to enter the Contract, and
will not have any Claim against the Customer if
any information or documents provided by the
Customer is incomplete, inaccurate out of date
or misleading in any way.

{b)  The Supplier may only rely on Reliable
Information, and only for the nominated
purpose and nominated validity period.

{c)  The Customer must inform the Supplier if it
becomes aware of any material inaccuracies or
omissions in any information provided to the
Supplier, including Reliable Information.

(d)  The Supplier must ensure that all
representations, warranties, declarations,
statements, informatiori and decuimenits
(“information”) made ¢cr provided by the
Supplier (including its representatives) in
connection with the Ceritract are complete,
accurate, up to date and not misleading in any
way. The Supplier mustimmediately tell the
Customer if any informiation is or becomes
incomplete, inaccurate, out of date or
misleading in any way.

14 Inteliectua! Property Rights
14.1 Existing intellectual Property Rights

Each parly retains all its Intellectual Property Rights
which existed at the Contract start date, or which are
developed independently of the Contract.

The Supplier grants (and must procure that relevant
third parties grant) the Customer an irrevocable,
ungonditional (subject to this clause), perpetual,
royalty-free, non-exclusive, worldwide, transferable
and sublicensable licence to exercise all such
Intellectual Property Rights which are incorporated
into any Goods, Services and Deliverables provided to
a Customer under the Contract, for any purpose of the
Customer, as part of those Goods, Services and
Deliverables and future development of those Goods,
Services and Deliverables.

14.2 New Intellectual Property Rights

Subject to clause 15 (“Customer Data”) new
Intellectual Property Rights created or developed in
performing the Contract will be owned by the
Customer. The Customer grants the Supplier an
irrevocable, unconditional {subject to this clause),
perpetual, royaity-free, non-exclusive, worldwide,
transferable and sub licensable licence to exercise all
such newly developed intellectual Property Rights, for
any purpose, including commercial purposes, subject
to the Supplier complying with its obligations in
relation to Confidential Information, Perscnal
Information and Customer Data.

14.3 Warranty of authorisation

The Supplier warrants that it is authorised to grant the
rights in this clause.

The Supplier warrants that the Deliverables and the
use of the Deliverables as permitied by this Contract
will not infringe the Intellectual Property Rights or
Moral Rights of any person.
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15 Customer Data

The ownership of Customer Data, including any
Intellectual Property Rights in Customer Data, shail
vest in the Customer on creation. The Supplier has no
right, title or interest in Customer Data except as
specified in this clause. The Supplier must not use,
access, modify or disclose Customer Data to any
person except to its Personnel on a need to know
basis to perform the SOA or Contracts and in
accordance with all Laws.

The Supplier must comply with clause 17 and all
applicable Laws in relation to Customer Data which is
Personal Information. The Supplier must provide
reasonable assistance to the Customer on request to
enable the Customer to comply with laws, policies and
standards applicable to the Customer in relation to
Customer Data including (without iimitation)
identification, labelling, searching, reporting, copying,
retrieval and modification of Customer Data in relation
to Personal Information, public records, right to
information and information standards.

16 Confidentiality

() Each party will keep confidential all Confidential
Information which it obtains from the Discloser,
or creates in relation to the Confract, not use it
except for the purposes of the Contract, and not
disclose it except to its Personnel on a need to
know basis for the purpose of performing its
obligations under the Contract, or with the
Discloser's consent, or to the exient required by
Law, or to its professional advisors, orin the
case of the Customer:

{i) toa Minister, their advisors or Pariiamen;
or

{i) as required under the Right {0 Information
Act.

(b) The Customer may publish information about
the Contract on the Governmeni's contract
directory, where required orrecommended by
Government procurerierit policy.

{c)  Where the Recipient dis¢loses the Confidential
Information to a third party as permitted under
this Contract, the Recipient must inform the
third party of the canfidential nature of the
Confidential Information, and will be responsible
for all Lse and disclosure of the Confidential
Inforrriation by the Recipient’s Persennel and
proiassionai advisors.

(d)  Ifthe Customer requests, the Supplier must
obtain from its Personnel a signed
confidentiality deed in a form acceptable to the
Customer.

(g)  The Supplier must not make any public
announcements or advertisement relating to the
Contract except where the Customer has

approved the proposed announcement or
advertisement in writing.

{f) If requested by the Customer, on termination or
expiry of the Contract, the Supplier must
promptly return or destroy (at the Customer's
option) all Customer Data, Confidential
Information and Personal Information of the
Customer, and a copy of ali documents and
records created by the Supplier in the
performance of the Contract, arid will confirm to
the Customer when this has been done.

(g) The Supplier may retain-a copy of any
Confidential Informaticn of the Customer to the
extent required by Law, or for the Supplier's
reasonable internai credit, risk, insurance, legal
and professional responsibilities.

17 Privacy

(&) If the Supplier collects or has access to
Parsenal Information in order to perform the
Contract; when performing this Contract the
Supplier must

(i) if the Customer is an 'agency’ for the
Information Privacy Act, other than for
chapter 3 of the Information Privacy Act —
comply with those parts of Chapter 2 of the
Information Privacy Act which are
applicable to the Customer, as if the
Supplier were the Customer; or

(i) otherwise — comply with the Australian
Privacy Principles in the Privacy Act.

(b)  The Supplier must:

{i) not transfer any Personal Information
collected or accessed in connection with
the Contract, outside of Australia, except
with the prior written consent of the
Customer; and

(il take any steps to prevent unauthorised use
or disclosure of Personal Information
collected or accessed in connection with
the Contract that are reasonably notified by
the Customer.

18 Anti-competitive conduct, conflict
of interest and criminal
organisations

18.1 Anti-competitive conduct

The Supplier warrants that neither it, nor its Personnel
have engaged in, or will engage in, any collusive, anti-
competitive or similar conduct in connection with the
Contract, any associated Invitation Process or any
actual or potential contract with any entity for goods
and services similar to the Goods and Services. In
addition to any other remedies available to it under
Law or contract, the Customer may, in its absolute
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discretion, immediately terminate the Contract if it
believes the Supplier has engaged in collusive or anti-
competitive conduct.

18.2 Conflict of Interest

The Supplier warrants that it and its Personnel do not
hold any office or possess any property, are not
engaged in any business or activity and do not have
any obligations where a Conflict of Interest is created,
or might appear to be created, in conflict with its
obligations under this Contract, except as disclosed in
the Details.

If the Customer requesis, the Supplier must cbtain
from its Perscnnel a signed conflict of interest
declaration in a form acceptable to the Customer.

18.3 Criminal organisation
The Supplier warrants that neither it nor its Perscennel:

(a) have been convicted of an offence under the
Criminal Code where one of the elements of the
offence is that the person is a participant in a
criminal organisation within the meaning of
section B0A(3) of the Criminal Code; or

{b) are subject to an order under, or have been
convicted of an offence under the Criminal
Organisafionr Act 2009 (Qld).

18.4 Warranties are onhgoing

The warranties in this clause are provided as at the
date of the Contract and on an cngoing basis. The
Supplier warrants that it will immediately notify the
Customer if it becomes aware that any warranty roade
in this clause 18 was inaccurate, incomplete, out of
date or misleading in any way when made, or
becomes inaccurate, incomplete, out of date or
misleading in any way.

In addition to any other remedies availabie {0t under
Law or contract, the Customer may, in its’ absolute
discretion, immediately terminate the Coniract if it
believes the Supplier has breached any warranty in
this clause.

19 Where Requirements nhot met

If any Requirements for Goads or Services are not
met, the Supplier must prompily (at the Customer’s
option);

(a) refund to-the Cusiomer any monies paid for the
relevant Goods or Services; or

(b)  resupply the relevant Goods, or re-perform the
relevant Services, so that the Goods and or
Services comply with the Requirements.

This does not limit the Customer's other rights or the
Supplier's responsibility if there is any non-compliance
with the Contract, and the Customer may exercise any

other right or remedy that it has under this Contract or
otherwise

If the Supplier fails to comply with its obligations under
this clause, the Customer may have the Goods
supplied or the Services performed by others, and the
Supplier shall pay to the Customer on demand any
costs incurred by the Customer in doing so.

20 Termination
20.1 For cause — by Customer

The Customer may terminate th2 Contract
immediately on written nictice if;

(a) the Customer is satisfied that any of the
declarations and warranties provided by the
Supplier were inaccurate, incomplete, cut-of-
date or misleading in any way when made, or
become inaccurate, incomplete, out-of-date or
misleading in-any way;

(b a Conflict of Interest arises and has nct been,
¢r inthe Customer's view cannot be
appropriately managed, to the Customer’s
satisfaction;

(¢} the Supplier ceases business or indicates that it
is unable or unwilling to complete the Contract;

(d) /) the Supplier breaches the Contract and the
breach cannot be remedied, or the breach can
be remedied but the Supplier has not remedied
the breach within a reasonable period
nominated by the Customer; or

(e) the Supplier is or becomes Insolvent.

If the Customer terminates under this clause 20.1, the
Supplier will pay or reimburse the Customer's
reasonable costs of obtaining replacement
Deliverables or arranging for another supplier to
complete the Contract.

20.2 For cause — by Supplier

The Supplier may terminate the Contract immediately
on written notice only if the Customer has not paid any
amount which is undisputed and properly payable, the
Supplier has notified the Customer of the outstanding
amount stating that it will terminate the Contract if the
Customer does not pay such amount within a
reasonable time set out in the notice, and the
reasonable time expires without the Customer
disputing the amount or making payment.

20.3 For convenience

The Customer may terminate the Contract in its
absolute discretion by giving at least 30 days' written
notice. If the Customer does so, the Customer will pay
the Supplier for the work performed and Goods
supplied but not yet invoiced on a pro rata basis, and
the Supplier's reasonable and documented expenses
directly relating to the termination. The Customer will
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have no other liability to the Supplier relating to the
termination. The Supplier must take reasonable steps
to minimise its expenses relating to the termination.

20.4 If SOA or a contract under the SOA is
terminated

(a) If this Contract is entered pursuant fo a SOA
the Customer may terminate the Contract for
cause immediately on written notice to the
Supplier if the Principal is entitled to terminate
the SOA or any customer (including the
Customer) is entitled to terminate for cause any
other contract entered under the SOA.

fb)  Unless otherwise specified in the Details, all the
terms and conditions of this Contract (including
this clause) will survive termination or expiry of
the SOA, for any reason.

20.5 Suspension

In addition to the Customer’s termination rights, the
Customer may suspend the Contract immediately on
written hotice in its absolute discretion, or in any
circumstances when it is entitled to terminate under
this clause 20. The Customer may end the
suspension on written notice. The Supplier will
promptly re-commence performance after receiving
the Customer's notice ending the suspension.

If the Customer suspends the Contract for any reasonr
which is not due to the act, default or omission of the
Supplier, the Customer will pay the Supplier's
reasonable and documented expenses directly

resulting from the suspension. The Customer will have

no other liability to the Supplier relating to the
suspension. The Supplier must take reasonable steps
to minimise its expenses relating to the suspensiori!

206 Conseq uences

Termination or suspension of the Contract will not
affect the accrued rights and remedies of the parties
prior to termination or suspension.

In no case will the compensation payable as a
consequence of termination {for any reason) exceed
the Price that would have been payable if the Contract
had not been terminated:

21 Assignment

The Contractor miay riot assign, transfer or novate any
of its rights or-chligations under the Contract without
the Custoniar's prior written consent.

The Customer imay assign, transfer or novate any of
its rights or obligations under the Contract:

{a)  with the Supplier's prior written consent; or

(b)  onwritten notice to the Supplier, in connection
with a Machinery of Government Change.

Both parties will act reasonably in considering a
request by the other party to assign, transfer or novate
the Contract.

For clarity, transfer of the Customer’s rights and
obligations within the same legal entity is not an
assignment.

The Contract is for the benefit of, and will bind the
parties and their successors and permitted assigns.

22 General

The parties agree that:

(&) (communication) they will direct all enquiries
relating to the Contradt to the other party's
nominated contact parson in the Details, or to
another person if the other party directs.

(b) (notices) they will send all notices relating fo
the'Contract to the other party at the address
listed-in the Details, with a copy to the
nominated contact persen in the Details (or as
updated under the above clause).

(¢) - {disputes) they will not bring any court
proceedings relating to this Contract (except
urgent interlocutory proceedings) without first
attempting to resclve the dispute by negotiation.

(d) ({variation) the Contract may only be varied by
written agreement of authorised representatives
of the parties.

{e) (entire agreement) this Contract sets out all
the parties rights and obligations relating to the
subject matter of the Contract, and it replaces
all earlier representations, statements,
agreements and understandings except as
stated otherwise in this Contract. No other
terms apply.

n (severability) if any part of this Contract is
invalid, unlawful or unenforceable, the invalid,
unlawful or unenforceable part of the Contract
(and any parts of the Contract which are
dependent on those parts) will not apply but the
other parts of the Contract will not be affected.

(9) (waiver) clauses and rights in this Contract can
only be waived in writing signed by the waiving
party. Failure or delay of a party in exercising a
right under the Contract does not waive the
party's rights. A waiver will only waive the
particular rights in the particular circumstances
and will not waive any other rights, or the same
rights in other circumsiances.

(h} (relationship) their relationship is of principal
and contractor. This Contract does not create
any partnership, joint venture or employment
relationship. The Supplier must not represent
itself or allow anyone else to represent that the
Supplier is a partner, joint venturer, officer or
employee of the Customer.
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(i)

@

(exclude implied terms) that the Sale of
Goods (Vienna Convention) Act 1986 (Qld)
does not apply, to the extent that the parties are
permitted by Law to exclude it.

(survival) clauses 1.2, 1.3, 5(n), 10, 11, 12,
14, 15,18, 17, 22{e), (§), (g), (h}, (i} and ()} will
survive termination or expiry cf the Contract for
any reason.

(costs) each party will bear its own costs in
relation to the preparation, negotiation and
execution of the Contract and any variations.
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Australia Day - market research

project

BACKGROUND

Multiplicité is werking with the Events Coordination, Queernsland Department of Premier
and Cabinet (EC, DPC) to do a market research project exploring how Queenslanders
engage and respond to its 2016 Australia Day events.

This document is cur plan for the research project;-including our detailed appreach and
methods as discussed at our start up meeting with Georgia Smith and Michelle
Wybrew. It is an accountability document for both Multiplicité and the Department that
will ensure the project is delivered on time-ard budget,

Australia Day celebrations in Queensland

Australia Day is one of our country’s most impertant celebrations. It acknowledges our
nation’s history and connects pecpleta each other and their communities, their history
and their shared future. Most Australians' go to organised Australia Day events, or join
with family and friends in theircommunity to celebrate the day.

Official Australia day celebrations are programmed and dslivered by state and territory
bodies in alignment with the vision of the National Australia Day Council (NADGC). The
EC DPC is respansible-far ¢reating and delivering interactive, relevant, local and
inclusive Austraiia Day events in Queensland.

Within the framéwork of the NADC Corporate Plan® (2015-19) and its own DPC
Strategic Plan® (£015-19), the EC’s programming sets out to fulfil four key objectives.

1. Innovatior./Exploring new solutions to maximise programming reach and
gfficiency.

2. Promslion. Generating positive links between Australia Day events and the
Queensland Government.

3./ Coordination. Managing national events at the state level consistent with the
NACE Framewark,

4.7 Facilitation. Creating a discussion amaong Queenslanders about what it means
o be Australian.

Queensland’s 2016 Australia Day prograrﬁ includes three flagship events, described in
Table 1.

1 National Australia Day Council, 2011
% http://www.australiaday.org.au/storage/NADG Corporate Plan V2.0 - FOR UPLOAD.pdf
* hitp:/Awaww. premiers.gld.gov.au/publications/categories/plans/strategic-plan/2015-2019-strategic-plan.aspx
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Table 1: Australia Day events in Queensland, 2018

Event Location(s) Details
,

Great - Brisbane Local restaurants run pop up focd stalis;
Australian (Southbank) music and entertainment headiined by
Bites selected Queensland Australia Day

Port

Douglas Ambassadors, Regional evenis are

, partnership between DPG and regional

23_9%6 Airlie Beach councils. Focus on seasonal produce
January and ‘paddock to plate’ in 2016.

Flag raising Townsville  Held in partnership with Townsville City
ceremony Council. There is some direct media
premotion of this event in Townsville.

26 January

Australia Day Statewide A natianaieveint organised by NADC.
at Work Workplaces register their Australia Day
celebrations through online portal and
. receive merchandise and game kits.
20-26
January

The NADC is responsible for oromoting national Australia Day events. DPC is
responsible for promating the events in Qusensland through a coordinated media
{including social madia) and content strategy, detailed in Table 2. DPC expects this
campaign will begin on-4 /January 2018,

Table 2: Event'Coardination, Department of the Pramier and Cabinet media schedule for
Australia day evants 2016

etails of promotional activity

Twitter #AustraliaDay (NADC)
#AustraliaDayQld (DPC})
#CelebrateYourWay

-
Facebook Animated advertising

Print, Advertising through in-kind support from Fairfax, ABC, Nine
radio,
television
AWBE RN W
hello@muliiplicite.com.au | www.multiplicte.com.au | +61 417 19 882 W"E‘" = e =mwe Nk
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METHODS

This section details our prepesed approach and methods. Our methods are the same
as those described in our proposal document, with additional detail and revisad
timeframes reflecting the delayed project start,

Purpose and scope

This purpose of the project is to explore how

*  Queenslanders engage and respond to Australia Day eventy’in 2016

«  Other Australian and international jurisdictions cslebrate their national days.

The resesarch findings will influence the Queensland Bepartment of Premier and
Cabinet's Australia Day programming in 2017-713,

The scope of the project is limited to the three flagship events described in Table 1.

Research questions
The project will answer the following two research questions.,

1. How do other cities and countries araund the world deliver their national day
celebrations, and how and to whal exteiit is technelogy integrated with the activities?

2. How well do the Department’s fiagship Australia Day events reach and engage
Queenslanders in 20167

*  What is the general conversation around food on Australia Day and Australia
Day at Work?

* How does public perceive the Great Australia Bites event? Specifically, what do
people think about it being limited only to River Quay (compared with
Scuthbank-wids evant in previous years)? What is the impact on participate?

«  Whatlevel of discussion/ nature of conversation does announcement of the
Australian of the year generate?

f Stage 1::5coping and planning
/
J

The-nurpase of this stage was to become familiar with the issues for the project
throsigh a start up meeting with EC, DPC. Stage 1 of the project is now complete; this
projest plan is the deliverable for the first stage.

4
¥ LA TR D]
hello@muitiplicite.com.au www.multiplicite.com.au | +81 417 §19 662 ’Aﬁgﬁggﬁ-_'ﬂ\vi!l |
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Stage 2: Desktop review

The purpose of this stage is to explore how Australian cities celebrateAustralia Day,
and how other countries celebrate their national days. We'll focus on the extent to
which technology or other innovative engagement approaches are Used. Qur review will
cover

o officlal celebrations similar to Australia Day (e.g. Bastille Day, Indapendence
Day) '

« unofficial celebrations or promotions that occur alongsids official celebrations
{e.g. Hottest 100 in Australia)

We will do the search cnline, with email or telephone fallow up o key sources if
required. We expect to develop a strategy to guide ths search, including keywords
such as civic engagement, digital marketing. digital event management together with
the names of the events or official celebrations.

[t may also be useful to broaden the search to discover innovative approaches to event
planning and management beyond civic celebrations. For example, use of social media
1o drive programming and participant engagement before and throughout large
conferences, or events

We will present the results of this/stage as five or six case studies. The case studies will
document how and who waz engaged (nature of promotion and technolegical
integration), and will also explore muiticulturalism and food as themes. It will highlight
events that align with the DPC approach.

KEY DATES FOR STAGE (2

N
Activity \\ Timeframe

Conduct desktop research  Week beginning 30 November 2015

Deliver summiary 17 or 18 December 2015
presentation

Stage 3~ Market and social research

e

J Thepurnose of this stage is to answer key project questions about how the
[ { Department’s flagship Australia Day events reach and engage Queenslanders. We will
cle-this using two research methods.

Social listening

We will monitor social conversations (Twitter, Facebaok, discussion boards, blegs and
media) using an enterprise analysis tool, Sysomos MAP. (including Twitter, Facebock,
YouTube, message boards and blogs).

P

. !_. -l-—
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DPC will be responsible for providing a list of official social media handles and
keywords for DPC and event ambassadors (Facebook, Twitter). We will develop a
listening strategy on the basis o this information, to be signed off by DPC.

Our analysis has two components: listening and discovery.

« Listening analyses will monitor the known elements of the cornversation, for
example, NADC, DPC or Australia Day Ambassador’s azgounts and Twitter
handles, campaign hash tags)

« Exploratory analyses will broaden the known elemenis of the conversation,
identifying important emerging themes, contributors-ar.influencers (such as
@BrisbaneCityQId) and use of other hash tags such as #StrayaDay, #0zDay
#AussieAs)

Both analyses will incorporate qualitative and quantitative elements, including

conversation volume and type of conversation, by channel, location and

demographics {frequency analysis)

conversation nature {discussion tonics and themes), by channel, location and
demographics {content analysis)

conversation sentiment, by channel, location and demographics (sentiment

conversation audience size and content shareability, by channel (reach/
engagement analysis)

Figure 1 gives an example of-how we will present the findings from the social listening
analyses.

o
1 LA IR b
hello@multigiicite.com.au | www.multiplicite.com.au | +61 417 519 662 PEWia = D =\ W W
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Market research

We will use different methods to do the market research for Great Australia Bites and
Australia Day at Work, however the survey Instrumeant used will be the’ same-for both
events.

We suggest the following six survey questions.
1. Is this the first tirme you've participated in [event name]?-{Yes/ no)
2, How did you hear about [event name]?
a. Radio/ television
b. Newspaper
c. Website
d. Social media
e. Friend or family member
f. Othar
3. How satisfied are you with this@vent? [Likart scalg]
4. What is your favourite Austraiia Day activity?
a. Food stalls
b. Fireworks
c. Breakfasts/morting tea
d. Outdoorcenceits
e. Fthnie/ indigenous cultural displays
f.  Sports competitions

g.—Children’s events

b /Motoring events
i) None of these

/ . Other [Please spacify|

5, “What activities would you like to see in [Brisbane/ Port Douglas/ Airlie Beach]
next year? [Open]

R

6. Demagraphics (Age/ gender/ postcode)

N

hJAWEZ B v
helo@multiplicite.com.au | www.multiplicite.com.au | +61 417 619 662 W'r.‘:?!-==-\ "yl
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Great Australia Bites

We will survey a cross-section of Great Australia Bites attendees at al three locations.
There is no target sample size, however the larger the sample size, ithe better, We will
use paper-based surveys, deliveraed by event day volunteers. DPC! is responsible for
recruiting and training event day volunteers to administer the surveys,-andfor ensuring
the survey responses are collected and returned o Multiplicité for Cata entry analysis.

We are exploring the possibility of using Twitter Mirrors ag a survey anchor (that is, the
mirror includes an electronic link to the survay).

Australia Day at Work

We will survey all of the workplaces registered for Australia Day at Work. The survey will
be sent to the email address used to ragister ine workplace—the Department is
exploring whether there are any privacy issues to account for. The email survey wil be
developed using Survey Gizmo. We anticipate that the survey will be open for
approximately two weeks after Australia/Day and that ong, fargeted reminder will be

sent to non-respondents To maximise the rasponse rate.

We will perform frequency analysis of: the quantitative data and thematic analysis of the
qualitative data.

At the end of the stage, we'lidelivér 2 summary presentation that draws on all the data
sourcas for the project, and jecludes findings and recommendations to the EC, DPC.

KEY DATES FOR STAGE 3

Activity Timeframe

Develop social listening strategy December 2015
Social listening analysis January 2016
Market resear;h ' January 20186
DELIVERABLE: Summary February 2016
preseniation

—IN\ | / &

.
AR T+ L7
helo@muttiplicite.com.au | www.multiplicie.comau | +61 417 619 662 s i RS
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PROJECT MANAGEMENT

At the Department level, responsibility for managing the project is in the-hands of
Georgia Smith. Georgia has day-to-day raspensihility for communicating with
Multiplicité and for monitoring the project’s progress according to the schediile
specified in this project plan, and for meeting regularly with Multiglicita, -

Dr Emily Versiege will manage the project for Multiplicité and wiit b the Department’s
contact for all day-to-day matters. It will he Emily’s responsitility to communicate
regularly with the Department by phone and emall to sumitiarise progress and to
discuss any emerging risks and strategies for managing those. Mark Verstege is the
Department’s secondary centact, Cur contact details are included below.

Emily Verstege emiv@multiplicite.com.au
Profect manager 0417619662
Mark Verstege mark@multiplicite.com.au
Team member 0403804218
hANET BN W l-n---=
hellb@multiplicite.com.au | www.multiplicite.com.au | +61 417 619 662 FEN riEE?E!A\giElrﬁ
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BACKGROUND

Multiplicité is working with the Events Coordination, Queensland
Department of Premier and Cabinet (EC, DPC) to o a market research
project exploring how Queenslanders engage and respond to its 2016
Australia Day events.

This document is our plan for the research project, including our detailed
approach and methods as discussed at our start up meeting with Georgia

A

Smith and Michelle Wybrew. It is an accountability document for both
Multiplicité and the Department that will ensure the project is delivered on
time and budget.

Australia Day celebrations in Queensland
Australia Day is one of our couniry’ s most important celebrations. It

acknowledges our nation' s history and connects people to each other
and their communities, their history and their shared future. Most
Australians’ go to organised Australia Day events, or join with family and

friends in their community to celebrate the day.

Official Australia day celebrations are programmed and delivered by state

j’ and territory badies in alignment with the vision of the National Australia
f Day Couiricii {NADC). The EC DPC is responsible for creating and delivering
j interactive, relevant, local and inclusive Australia Day events in
e ] Queensland.

Within the framework of the NADC Corporate Plan (2015-19) and its own
DPC Strategic Plan (2015-19), the EC’ s programming sets out to fulfilf
four key objectives.

1. Innovation. Exploring new solutions to maximise programming reach
and efficiency.

2. Promotion. Generating positive links between Australia Day events

and the Queensland Government.

1 National Australia Day Council, 2011
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3. Coordination. Managing national events at the state level consistent
with the NACD Framework.

4. Facilitation. Creating a discussion among Queenslanders about what

it means to be Australian.

Queensland’ s 2016 Australia Day program includes three flagship events,
described in Table 1.

PEwE = o =awas NV
Innovation driven by evidence

RTID327.pdf - Page Number: 33 of 240



rnANET NS
'E?'V“tEE

Innovation driven by evidence

Table 1: Australia Day events in Queensland, 2016
] N
I
Great Brisbane Local restauranis run pop up food stalls;
Australian Bites (Southbank} music and entertainment headlined by
Port selected Queensiand Australia Day
Ambassadors. Ragional events are partnership

23-26 January  Douglas
between DPC and regional councils. Focus on

Airlie Beach
seasonal produce and 'paddock to plate’ in
2016,
Flag raising Townsville Held in partnership with Townsville City
ceremony Council. There is some direct media
26 January promotion of this event in Townsville.

Australia Day Statewide A national event organised by NADC.
at Work Workplaces register their Australia Day
celebrations through online portal and receive

20-26 January merchandise and game kits.

H
| gf The NADC is responsible for delivering and promoting national Australia
o Day events, including Australia Day at Work (see Table 1) and the
Australian of the Year Awards. DPC is responsible for promoting NADC
events in Queensland through a coordinated media (including social
media) and content strategy, detailed in Table 2. DPC expects this
campaign will begin on 4 January 2016.

Table 2; Event Coordination, Department of the Premier and Cabinet media schedule

for Australia day events 2016

Twitter #AustraliaDay (NADC)
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#AustraliaDayQld (DPC)
#CelebrateYourWay

Facebook Animated advertising

Print, Advertising through in-kind support from Fairfax, ABC, Nine
radio,
television
L. C )
. . . . . [ | -2+ 1—L] O ——
hello@multiplicite.com.au | www.multiplicite.com.au | +61417 619 ’gggﬁgg-__ég%!l A
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METHODS

This section details our proposed approach and methads. Our methods are
the same and those described in our proposal document, with additional
detail and revised timeframes reflecting the delayed project start.

Purpose and scope
This purpose of the project is to explore how

¢ Queenslanders engage and respoid to Australia Day events in 2016

e  Other Australian and internationat jurisdictions celebrate their national

days.

The research findings will influence the Queensland Department of Premier
and Cabinet’ s Australia Day pregramming in 2017-18.

The scope of the project isiimited to the Great Australia Bites and
Australia Day at Work.

Research questions
The project will answer the following two research questions.

1. How do cother cities and countries around the world deliver their
national day celebrations, and how and to what extent is technology

integratec with the activities?

2. (How well do the Department’ s flagship Australia Day events reach
and engage Queenslanders in 20167?

» What is the general conversation around food on Australia Day?

+ How does public perceive the Great Australia Bites event?
Specifically, what do people think about it being limited only to
River Quay (compared with Southbank-wide event in previous

years)? What is the impact on participate?

Stage 1: Scoping and planning
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The purpdse of this stage was to become familiar with the issues for the
project through a start up meeting with EC, DPC. Stage 1 of the project is
now complete; this project plan is the deliverable for the first stage.

s T 4
. . . R . AR Y| I —
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Stage 2: Desktop review
The purpose of this stage is to explore how Australian cities celebrate

Australia Day, and how other countries celebrate their national days.
We' Il focus on the extent to which techniology or other innovative

engagement approaches are used. Oui review will cover

» official celebrations similar 1o Australia Day (e.g. Bastille Day,
Independence Day)

» unofficial celebrations or promotions that occur alongside official

celebrations (e.g. Hottest 100 in Australia)

We will do the search online, with email or telephone follow up to key
sources if required. We expect to develop a strategy to guide the search,
including keywords such as civic engagement, digital marketing and event
management together with the names of the events or official

celebrations.

We expect it wiil be necessary to broaden the search to discover innovative
approaches io event planning and management beyond civic celebrations.
For example, use of social media to drive programming and participant
engazgement before and throughout large conferences, or events

We will present the results of this stage as five or six case studies. The case
studies will document how and who was engaged (nature of promotion
and technological integration), and will also explore multiculturalism and
food as themes. It will highlight events that align with the DPC approach.

KEY DATES FOR STAGE 2

Conduct desktop research Week beginning 30 November 2015

Deliver summary presentation 17 December 2015
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Stage 3: Market and social research

The purpose of this stage is to answer key project questions about how the
Department’ s flagship Australia Day events reach and engage
Queenslanders. We will do this using two research methods.

Social listening
We will monitor social conversations (Twitter, Facebcok, discussion boards,
blogs and media) using an enterprise analysis tooi, Syniliesio.

hello@mukiplicite.com.au www.multiplicite.com.au | +61417 619
662
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DPC is responsible for providing a list of official social media handles and
keywords for DPC and event ambassadors (Facebook, Twitter). We will
develop a listening strategy on the basis o this information, to be signed
off by DPC. '

Our analysis has two components: listening and discovery.

e Listening analyses will monitor the known elements of the

conversation, for example, NADC, DPC or Australia Day
Ambassador’ s accounts and Twitter handles, campaign hash tags)

« Exploratory analyses will broaden the known elements of the

conversation, identifying important emerging themes, contributors
or influencers (such as @BrisbaneCityQld) and use of other hash
tags such as #StrayaDay, #0zDay #AussieAs)

Both analyses will incorporate qualitative and quantitative elements,

including

= conversation volume and type of conversation, by channel, location
and demographics (frequency analysis)

H/‘ _ »/ sconversation nature (discussion topics and themes), by channel,
location and demographics (content analysis)

« conversation sentiment, by channel, location and demographics

{sentiment analysis)

¢ conversation audience size and content shareability, by channel

{reach/ engagement analysis)

Figure 1 gives an example of how we will present the findings from the

social listening analyses.
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Market research
We will use different methods to do the market reseaich for Great

Australia Bites and Australia Day at Work, however the survey instrument
used will be the same for both events. EC DPC are currently exploring
whether the NADC is running event surveys and; if so, how we could best
align the two research projects. Assuming the two research projects do not

overlap, we suggest the following seven survey questions.
1. Who do you usually celebrate Australia Day with? [Select all that
apply]
a. Don’ tusually celebrate
b. Friends
c. Family

d. Work mates

2. Who did you come to the event with today? (*Great Australia Bites
only) [Seiect all that apply]

a..Came alone

o

Friends

o

Family

d. Work mates
3. Is this the first time you' ve participated in [event name]? (Yes/ no)
4. How did you hear about [event name]?

a. Radio/ television

b. Newspaper

c. Website

d. Social media
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e. Friend or family member

f. Other
5. How satisfied are you with this event? [Likert scale]
6. What is your favourite Australia Day activity?

a. Food stalls

b. Fireworks

c. Breakfasts/ morning tea

d. Outdoor concerts

e. Ethnic/ Indigenous cultural displays

f.  Sports competitions

g. Children’ s events

h. Motoring events

i. None of these

j.  Other [Plecse specify]

7. What activities would you like to see in [Brishane/ Port Douglas/
Airlie Beach} next'year? [Open]

8. Demcgraphics (Age/ gender/ postcode)

9. Emailaddress (If entering prize draw)

hello@multiplicite.com.au | wwwmultipficite.com.au | +61417 619 ’Al!ﬁ_ﬁ.-__l '-'EF
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Grc-__'at Australia Bites

We will survey a cross-section of Great Australia Bites attendees at all three
locations. There is no target sample size, kiowever the larger the sample
size, the better. We will use electronic surveys on iPads, delivered by event
day volunteers. DPC is responsible for recruiting and training event day
volunteers to administer the surveys aind for making the Survey responses
available to Multiplicité.

We are exploring the possibility of using Twitter Mirrors as a survey anchor
(that is, the mirror includes an eiectronic link to the survey).

Australia Day at Work

We will survey all of the workplaces registered for Australia Day at Work.
The survey will be sent to the email address used to register the
workplace—the Department is exploring whether there are any privacy
issues to accourit for. The email survey will be developed using Survey
Gizmo. We anticipate that the survey will be open for approximately two
weeks after Australia Day and that one, targeted reminder will be sent to
non-respondents to maximise the response rate.

Ve will perform frequency analysis on the quantitative data and thematic
analysis of the qualitative data.

At the end of the stage, we' |l deliver a summary presentation that draws
on all the data sources for the project, and includes findings and
recommendations to the EC, DPC.

KEY DATES FOR STAGE 3
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Develop social listening strategy December 2015
Social listening analysis January 2016
Market research January 201(:';
DELIVERABLE: Summary presentation 11 February 2016

Py e 4
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PROJECT MANAGEMENT

At the Department level, responsibility for managing the project is in the
hands of Georgia Smith. Georgia has day-to-day responsibility for
communicating with Multiplicité and for monitoring the project’ s
progress according to the schedule specified in this project plan, and for
meeting regularly with Multiplicité.

Dr Emily Vefstege will manage the projectfor Multiplicité and will be the
Department’ s contact for all day-to-day matters. It will be Emily’ s
responsibility to communicate regularly with the Department by phone
and email to summarise progress;and to discuss any emerging risks and
strategies for managing these. Mark Verstege is the Department’ s
secondary contact. Our contact details are included below.

N

Emily Verstege emily@multiplicite.com.au

Project managzer 0417619662

Mark Verstege mark@multiplicite.com.au

Team member

0403804218

RTID327.pdf - Page Number: 46 of 240




RTID327.pdf - Page Number: 47 of 240



Schedule 5 — SOA Order details (Project Brief)

A Contract is created when the Supplier and Customer agree the commercial details
relevant to the Contract using the SOA Order, in accordance with this Schedule 5. This
Schedule contains an example of an SOA Order that the Supplier and Customer might use.
Alternatively, the parties may describe in this Schedule the process for Customers placing
an SOA Order. The SOA Order is part of the Contract.

The details identified below are the only details that the Supplier and Customer cain change
as part of the Contract. The details in an SOA Order relate only to the particular Contract for
which they are agreed. Nothing in an SOA Order can modify the SOA Detaiis or affect any
other Contracts that may be agreed under the same SOA. The Customer will complete and
submit the SOA Order.

SOA Order (Project Brief):

The SOA Order contains important commercial information. The example SOA Order form

below represents a project brief form that can be used by Cugtomers to engage a Supplier to
provide Services.

SOA Order Form - Pro ’: rief Details

Name: Events Coordination, Department of the
Premier and Cabinet

ABN or ACN: B85 959 415 158

Street address: Executive Building, Floor 2, 100 George Street
Brisbane

Postal addrass: Executive Building, Floor 2, 100 George Street
Brisbane

Contact person: Georgia Smith

Positicn: A/Events Manager

Email: georgia.smith@premiers.qld.gov.au

Aliriotices and other communications relating to the Contract are to be
sent to the Customer at the details set out in this item, or any updated
details that the Customer provides to the Supplier in writing.

The project includes the following three phases:
Customer Requirements

1. Research approaches to Australian (and international) national
day/civic celebrations to understand what approaches work, for
whom and in what context.

2. Gather community feedback (in person, social listening or other
methods) on 2016 Australia Day celebrations in Queensland to
understand how well events meet community expectations and
identify relevant gaps.

3. Evaluate 2017 Australia Day celebrations in Queensland to
update data on how well current events meet community
expectations and identify relevant gaps.

This is the period of the individual Contract, when the Supplier must

i C°“t_"§9'_t term provide the Goods or Services:
| start date: Late Octaber 2015
-| End date: Late March 2016
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SOA Order Form - Project Brief Details

‘| facilitate access to the community through the 2016 Australia Day

To assist the Supplier in obtaining feedback, Events Coordination will

events (delivered by the Queensland Government) being held
throughout Queensland.

1 N/A

“Key Personnel (Services

Time for performance
(Services only)

§ Service period: October 2015 — March 2015

Project Budget — Please
“indicate if this is'a limited
budget .

accordance with the pricing in the SOA Details.

Total project budget is limited to $30,000 excluding GST.

Payment milestones “

1 The Supplier ig-tc set out the timetable for payments {either frequency or

The Supplier may invoice the Customer at the frequency, or after
successful achievement of the milestones, as follows:

« completion oiprojact phase one
« completion of project phase two
+« completion of project phase three

linked to milestories), the amount of each payment and the Deliverables
that the payments relate to.

‘Contract governance
requirements

1 N/A

Projeci Name

Australia Day Market Research

"Background

1 Queenslanders, identify any relevant gaps and provide

The project aims to understand how well the Queensland Government's
current program of Australia Day events meet the needs and interests of

recommendations for programming Australia Day activities in 2017.

In 2011 the NADC conducted research on Australians atfitude to
Australia Day. Below are some of the relevant findings:

s Australia Day is the commemoration of the birth of Australia, but
also an opportunity for people {Australian and non Australian) to
feel or become part of the country. These two elements have
been identified by this study as the main reasons behind the
importance of Australia Day.

+ Australia Day is widely considered to be Australia’s most
impertant national celebration, mentioned spontaneously by 81
per cent, and 93 per cent when prompted. 7 per cent did not
see Australia Day as an important celebration.

» in 2001 participation in organised Australia Day events was 14-
15 per cent. The study reported that estimates for participation
over 2010 and 2011 were 27 per cent and 22 per cent
respectively.

» the majority of respondents celebrated Australia Day in their
own suburb/metropolitan area (50 per cent) or own town/region
(24 per cent), with a small minority opting for ancther suburb
(13 per cent).

RTID327.
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Objectives

SOA Order Form - Project Brief Details

s historical participation data suggests that some of the many
events presented in communities across Australia are: fireworks
(48 per cent), food stalls (27 per cent), breakfasts and morning
tea (22 per cent) and outdoor concerts (22 per cent).

» this study revealed a considerable potential demand for a wide
range of activities, including food stalls (34 per cent), concerts
(33 per cent), art exhibitions (27 per cent), breakfasts and
-morning tea (28 per cent), fireworks (23 ver cziit), ethnic and
Indigenous cultural displays {19 per cent 2ach), sports
competitions {18 per cent), children’s events (18 per cent) and
motoring events (15 per cent). 15 per.cent of respondents were
not interested in Australia Day events.

These findings have been taken into cansideration in planning for recent
Australia Day events.

The overall objective of this project is to provide informed
recommendations for progiamming Australia Day activities in 2017
based on in depth research conducted with a cross section of the
Queensland population,

Recommendations should take into account the overall Australia Day
objectives, which inciude:

» continugic increase the regional focus and participation in
Australia Day activities

» creafic an opportunity and offer engaging, interactive and
relevant events to Queenslanders related to Australia Day, and
its themes

* Z'in collaboration with the NADC Network, create and offer
engaging, interactive and relevant oniine tools in collaboration
with the NADC, to encourage involvement in Australia Day

+ —create a discussion amongst Queenslanders about what it
means to be Australian

* act as the facilitator for councils and third parties in promoting
their Australia Day activities

o offer events and activities with an inclusive approach
recognising Australia’s diverse background

+ promote a positive link between Australia Day activities and the
Queensland Government

+ manage hational events at a state level to participate in the
Australia Day framework managed by the National Australia Day
Council

« innovative solutions to deliver quality programs within restricted
budgets.

All of Queensland — metropolitan, regional and rural.

‘Target Audience

¥ 18-60 years, male and female, Queensland residents

iPr ect Performance .

The foliowing items will be required in conclusion of the project:
s adetailed report with key recommendations, verbatim quotes
and a breakdown of feedback results.
« afull presentation to members of the Events Coordination team
with an explanation of the key findings and recommendations
included in the report.
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Both parties are required to sign the final brief before commencement of a market research project. Please
ensure that departmental procurement policy are adhered to in relation to ‘Delegation of Authority’.

Government representative

Name:
Position:

Date:

Supplier representative
Name:
Position:

Date:
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2016-18 Australia Day strategic plan
Australia Day

Australia Day is a day when Australians come together with friends or with the wider community to
celebrate what's great about Australia and being Australian. It's the day to reflect on-what-we have
achieved and what we can be proud of in our great nation. It's the day for us to rée-commit to making
Australia an even better place for the future.

On Australia Day, the National Australia Day Council {NADC) reports that over half of the population
either attend an organised community event, or get together with family and friends with the
intention of celebrating our national day. For many, Australia Day is more than barbeques and
fireworks. It is also an opportunity o learn about and celebrate ourhistory.

At its core, Australia Day is driven by communities, and the celebrations held in each town, suburb
or city — unified by the celebration of what's great about Australia and being Australian — are the
foundation of its ongoing success.

Background research
In 2011 the NADC conducted research on Australians attitude to Australia Day. Below are some of
the relevant findings:

* Australia Day is the commemoration of the birth of Australia, but also an opportunity for people
{Australian and non Australian} to feel or become part of the country. These two elements have
been identified by this study as the main reasons behind the importance of Australia Day.

* Australia Day is widely considered to be Australia’s most important national celebration,
mentioned spontaneously by 81 per cent, and 93 per cent when prompted. 7 per cent did not
see Australia Day as an important celebration.

* In 2001 participation in organised Australia Day events was 14-15 per cent. The study reported
that estimates for participationover 2010 and 2011 were 27 per cent and 22 per cent
respectively.

* The majority of respondents celebrated Australia Day in their own suburb/metropolitan area (50
per cent} or own town/ragion (24 per cent), with a small minerity opting for another suburb (13
per cent).

* Historical participation data suggests that some of the many events presented in communities
across Austratia are: fireworks (48 per cent), food stalls (27 per cent), breakfasts and morning
tea (22 per cent) and outdoor concerts (22 per cent).

* This study revealed a considerable potential demand for a wide range of activities, including
food stalis {34 per cent), concerts (33 per cent), art exhibitions (27 per cent), breakfasts and
morning tea {28 per cent), fireworks {23 per cent), ethnic and Indigenous cultural displays (19
per cent each), sports competitions (18 per cent}, children’s events {18 per cent) and motoring
events (15 per cent). 15 per cent of respondents were not interested in Australia Day events.
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These findings have been taken into consideration in planning for recent Australia Day Events.

Events Coordination (EC), Department of the Premier and Cabinet (DPC) will actively investigate
opportunities to conduct targeted market research with a cross section of the Queanslanc
population around community engagement, program elements and attitudinal feedbacikon
Australia Day, to influence programming throughout 2017-18.

The results of this feedback will assist with gaining insights into the ways Oueenslanders currently
celebrate the national day, as well as gaining recommendations for public barticipation and
partnerships for government.

Research will also include an analysis of other national day celebrations'delivered by other cities
throughout Australia, and the rest of the world. '

Objectives for involvement in Australia Day

NADC provides an overarching vision for Australia Day. This vision is implemented and tailored to each
state and territory through the expert local knowledge of the state and territory organisations.

NADC provides grants to states and territories to ensure equal participation nationwide. In 2015 the
NADC provided a grant of $89 000 {GST exclusive) to thie/Queensland Government for Australia Day
celebrations.

In addition to this grant, the Queensland Gowernment has traditionally provided funding to further
assist in the facilitation and delivery of Australia Day events across the state. In 2015 this funding
amounted to $255 000 (GST exclusive).

EC also seeks cash and in-kind sponsorship for events, and NADC manage national sponsors for
support of their respective natiopal programs. This is to deliver a statewide program inclusive of all
options, resources and marketing.

EC will seek to achieve the foilawing through the Australia Day activities in 2016 —2018:

¢ continue to increase the regional focus and participation in Australia Day activities

e create an oppgriunity and offer engaging, interactive and relevant events to Queenslanders
related to Australiz Day, and its themes

o in collaboration with the NADC Network, create and offer engaging, interactive and relevant
onlina toolsin collaboration with the NADC, to encourage involvement in Australia Day

s create a discussion amongst Queenslanders about what it means to be Australian

e act as the facilitator for councils and third parties in promoting their Australia Day activities

e offerevents and activities with an inclusive approach recognising Australia’s diverse
background

e promote a positive link between Australia Day activities and the Queensland Government

s manage national events at a state level to participate in the Australia Day framework
managed by the National Australia Day Council

« innovative solutions to deliver quality programs within restricted budgets.
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The provision for offering historical and educational information on Australia Day is managed by the
NADC and is available on the Australia Day homepage.
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Meeting minutes %

Australia Day — market research

Innovation driven by evidence

project

Date: Thursday, 19/11/2015

Present: Mark Verstege (Mutliplicité), Emily Verstege (Multiplicité), Georgia
Smith (DPC), Michelle Wybrew {DPC)

Agenda

1. Overview of DPC's current progress to date for Australia Day 2016
2. Agree on Multiplicité’s methcds and approach to:

a. Deskiop research

b. Social listening

c. Markst day researcty surveys

3. Conilrm kay research quesiions

4. Next steps

Actions

Who What

DPC -7 Will confirm if surveys/polis can be coordinated for
Australia Day @ Waork events through website (e.q.
Survey Gizmao)

- Provide campaign schedule and communication
plan

- Social madia handles for DPC and event
ambassadoers (Facebook, Twitter, Instagram)

- Look intc potential privacy issues surrcunding use
of the Australia Day @ Work registration database
for survey mail out

- See if M+ can access NADC's direct contacts with
Facebook and Twitter to assist with polls

- Resource survey collection voluntears for Great
Australian Bites

Multipliciié

Provide a project plan with key deliverable dates
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and survey questions for DPC sign-off

- Commence work on dasktop research

Minutes

Background on Australia Day events, 2016

1. Great Australian Bites

This will be the flagship event and predeminant focus of the research
project. Now in its third year, the event is a family-focused and non-
ticketed. It will be held in three locations.

* Brisbane (Southbank, River Quay} from Saturday 23
January to Tuesday 26 January 2016, Both daytime and evening
activities are planned on 25 and 26 January. It is delivered in
partnership with four local restauraits, which offer tasting plates
of food. The type of foodisarved is driven by participating
restaurants, In 2016, there witl be a producer element, with a
focus on sourcing local good quality ingredients. There will be
workshops and provider-stalls

* Airlie Beach on 26 danuary only. DPC and regional council co-
sponsoring the event.

= Port Douglas-on 26 January only. DPC and Douglas Regicnal
council are cossponsoring the event; the Goungil has engaged a
local-supplier to deliver the gvent in Port Douglas.

2. Flag raising ceremony
Hald on 24 January only in Townsville, in partnership with Townsville City

Courcil-There is some direct media promation of this event in
Tawnsvilie.

{ 3.\ Australia Day at Work

j This is a national svent, organisad by the NADC, Workplaces register
their Australis Day celebration and receive a merchandise kit and
decorations for thelr stare.

4, Australia Day Ambassadors

Each year, the NADC selects prominent Australians as Ambassadors.
There are approximately 50 Queensland Ambassadors for 2016, who will
attend approximately 40 events on Australia Day. Three Ambassadors

P
| A -.__-El-l-—"
hello@mutiplicite.com.au | www.multiplicite.corm.au | +61 417 619 662 'Eggﬁgg-a==“i='!u

Innovation driven by evidence
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will be involved in the Great Australia Bites events.
* (Georgia Barnes (Brisabng)
*  Emi Kamada and Marie Yokoyama (Airlie Beach)
* Alison Alsxander (Port Douglas)
DPC is talking directly with Quesanstand event ambassadors, Thate is an

expsctation they will use their social media accounts to promote events
in the weeks before Australia Day.

Media and content strategy

DPC has a media {including social media) and cauntent strategy, which is
currently awaiting signoff. Assuming no gdelay to signoff, the media and
content strategy will begin from 4 January 2016, DPC will forward
campaign schedule and communications plan to Multiplicité,

NADC haven't shared their national campaign schedule, but BPC will
forward o Multiplicité when it is relcased.

Twitter

* f#AustraliaDay (NADC)

¢ #AustraliaDayQId(DPC, QLD)
*  #CelebrateYcurWay (NADC)
Facebook |

4:‘{;,«

. DPC will be-engaging through Facebock with animated advert
,/ ! Print and television
o‘[ NADC will'be promoting Australia Day/ events through in-kind media
parinerships:
Falrfax
- ABC
- Ning or Seven (7)
Research questions
hello@multiphici iplici ' ?"‘!"‘?555'-'-5"5575
plicite.com.au | www.multiplicite.com.au | +61 417 619 662 EWE S o =S\ Y W
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Desktop research.

Multiplicité agreed to deliver the desktop research as five or six case
studies. The case studies will document how and who was engaged
(nature of promotion and technological integration}, and will also axplore
multicutturalism and food as themes, It will highlight eventis that elign with
the DPC approach.

Social and market ressarch

+  What is the general conversaticn around food on Australia Day
and Australia Day at Work’?

» How does public perceive the Great Australia Bites event?
Specifically, what do people think gbout it being limited only to
River Quay (compared with Scuthbank-wide event In previous
years)? What is the impact on participate?

+  What leval of discussion/ nature of conversation does
announcement of the Austialian of the vear generate?

Social and market researcly methods

DPG and Multiplicité-agraed to focus market research only on Great
Australia Bites and Ausiralia Day at Work,

Great Australia Bites
Surveying nuislic at Great Australia Bites can be done in two ways.

« _ Paper-based surveys delivered by volunteers. DPC will ensure
volunteers available for this role.

« > Twitter Mirrors. Thase were a success at events in 2015, DPC/
j Multiplicité will explore the possibility of using these as survey
o, jg‘ anchor (g.g. electronic link to survey on mirror)

Australia Day at Work

Workplaces register to participate using a website; email addresses are
collected as part of the registration process. DPC will explore the
possibility of sending the survay to registered participants, and
embedding the survay link on the website.

N

0 P
helo@multiclicite.com.au | www.multiplicite.com.au | +81 417 619 662 ’E"E ="'="=ﬁ"'1..."
Innovation driven by evidence
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Meeting minutes 145

Innovation driven by evidence

Australia Day — market research

-Yai J
Nnrniar =

Date: Thursday, 19/11/2015

Present: Mark Verstege (Mutliplicité), Emily Verstege {(Multiplicité),
Georgia Smith (DPC), Michelle Wybrew (DPC)

Agenda

1. Overview of DPC’ s current progress to date for Australia
Day 2016

2. Agree on Multiplicité’ s methods and approach to:
a. Desktop reseaich
b. Social listening
c. Market day research surveys

3. Confirm key research questions

4. Nextsteps

Actions

Who What

BPC "~ -~ Provide campaign schedule and
communication plan (DPC and NADC) [In
progress]

- Social media handles for DPC and event
ambassadors (Facebook, Twitter, Instagram)

[In progressj

- Look into potential privacy issues
surrounding use of the Australia Day @ Work
registration database for survey mail out
[Done. This is possible]
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- See if M+ can access NADC' s direct
contacts with Facebook and Twitter to assist
with polls [Will not proceed with this research
method]

- Resource survey collection volunteers for
Great Australian Bites [In progress]

Multiplicité - Provide a project plan with key deliverable
dates and survey questicris for DPC sign-off
[Done, this document]
- Commence work on decktop research [In
progress]
Minutes

Background on Australia Day events, 2016

1. Great Australian Bites

This will be the flagship event and predominant focus of the
research project. Now in its third year, the event is a family-
focused and non-ticketed. It will be held in three locations.

« Briskane (Southbank, River Quay) from Saturday 23
Jaruary to Tuesday 26 January 2016. Both daytime and
evening activities are planned on 25 and 26 January. It is
delivered in partnership with four local restaurants, which

offer tasting plates of food. The type of food served is
driven by participating restaurants. In 2016, there will be a
producer element, with a focus on sourcing local good
quality ingredients. There will be workshops and provider
stalls

e Airlie Beach on 24 January only. DPC and regional council
co-sponsoring the event.

4
. oo — ——
hello@multiplicite.com.au | www.multiplicite.com.au | +61 417 619 Eggﬁgg-__ég!‘g;=l g
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+ Port Douglas on 26 January only. DPC and Douglas
Regional council are co-sponsoring the event; the Council

has engaged a local supplier to deliver the event in Port
Douglas.

2. Flag raising ceremony

Held on 26 January only in Townsville, in partnership with
Townsville City Council. There is some direct media promotion of
this event in Townsville.

3. Australia Day at Work

This is a national event, organised by the NADC. Workplaces
register their Australia Day celebration and receive a merchandise
kit and decorations for their store.

4. Australia Day Ambassadors

Each year, the NADC selects prominent Australians as
Ambassadors. There are approximately 50 Queensland
Ambassadors for 2016, who 'will attend approximately 40 events

on Australia Day. Three Amhassadors will be involved in the
Great Australia Rites events.

¢ Georgia Barnes (Brisabne)
» EmiKamada and Marie Yokoyama (Airlie Beach)

» ~Alison Alexander (Port Douglas)

PPC s talking directly with Queensland event ambassadors.
T

rhere is an expectation they will use their social media accounts
to promote events in the weeks before Australia Day.

Media and content strategy

DPC has a media (including social media) and content strategy,
which is currently awaiting signoff. Assuming no delay to signoff,

4
. g . - o
Zzgo@multlpllcne.com.au | www.multiplicite.com.au | +61417 619 'éggﬂg?%g%il!ﬁ}ﬁ
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the media and content strategy will begin from 4 January 2016.
DPC will forward campaign schedule and communications plan to
Multiplicite.

NADC haven' t shared their nationa!l campaign schedule, but
DPC will forward to Multiplicité when it is released.

Twitter
« #AustraliaDay (NADC)
+ #AustraliaDayQld (DPC, QLD)
o #CelebrateYourWay (NADC
facebook
DPC will be engaging through Facebook with animated advert
Print and television

NADC will be promotinig Australia Day/ events through in-kind
media partnerships:

Fairfax

-  ABC

- Aineor Seven (7)

Rescarch questions

Desktop research.

Multiplicité agreed to deliver the desktop research as five or six
case studies. The case studies will document how and who was
engaged (nature of promotion and technological integration),
and will also explore multiculturalism and food as themes. It will
highlight events that align with the DPC approach.

IS = o
Innovation driven by evidence
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Social and marlket research

» What is the general conversation around food on Australia
Day?

» How does public perceive the Great Australia Bites event?
Specifically, what do people think about it being limited
only to River Quay {compared with Southbark-wide event
in previous years)? What is the impact on particihate?

Social and market research methods

DPC and Multiplicité agreed to focus rnarket research only on
Great Australia Bites and Australia Day at Work.

Great Australia Bites

Surveying public at Great Australia Bites can be done in two

ways:
ZL"Z::“:::M&M

o » Electronic (iPad) surveys delivered by volunteers. DPC will
/ ensure voluntaers available for this role and will have iPads

available foruse,

» Twitter Mirrors. These were a success at events in 2015.
DPC/ Muttiplicité will explore the possibility of using these

j as survey anchor (e.g. electronic link to survey on mirror)
ﬁf Austratia Day at Work
e j Workplaces register to participate using a website; email

addresses are collected as part of the registration process.
Multiplicité (through DPC) will be able to email registrants using
email addresses in this database.

o R 4
hello@multiplicite.com.au www.multiplicite.comau | +61417 619 E%E%;E?%E%EE’EE
662 Innovation driven by evidence
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Lucas Clarke

. R
From: Georgia Smith

Sent: Thursday, 28 January 2016 4:09 PM

To: Michelle Wybrew,; Renaye Kelis

Subject: FW: Australia Day research update

Attachments: Australia Day research project preliminary social media update.pdf

FYI below and attached.

Georgia Smith

Events Manager, Events Coordination
Strategic Engagement and Protocol
Department of the Premier and Cabinet

P 07 3003 9119 M
Queens[and Executive Building, Level 2, 100 George Sireet, Brisbane QLD 4000
Government PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

From: Emily Verstege [mailto:emily@multiplicite.com.au]

Sent: Thursday, 28 January 2016 3:35 PM

To: Georgia Smith <Georgia.Smith@premiers.qld.gov.au>; Mark Verstege <mark@multiplicite.com.au>
Subject: Australia Day research update

Hi Georgia,
Trust you're well and recovered after all the Australia Day planning and festivities.

Please find attached a really high level summary of the social listening analysis to date, Note that we're
continuing to see some social media activi ty and will continue our monitoring until the end of this week
(31/ 1). The analysis we go onto provide will be much deeper and nuanced: this is just to reassure you that
we're onto the analysis.

We look forward to receiving the survey data collected from the Bites events: ideally this would be as a
.CSV spreadsheet rather than the aggregate reporting that Survey Monkey generates. I can talk you and your
team through that if required;

We expect the analysis of both data sources will take about 7 days, and pulling our report together will take
a few more days after that. When do you finish work and when would be best for us to present our findings?

Thanks,
Emily

1
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Lucas Clarke

L L
From: Georgia Smith

Sent: Friday, 29 January 2016 9:55 AM

To: Renaye Kelis; Michelle Wybrew

Subject: FW: Australia Day research update

Attachments: image002.png; image002.png

Hi tadies

Do you have availability the weelk of 15 February to have the final meeting with Multiplicite?

They have advised our survey result sample is quite small. 'm a little annoyed by thig’as thev provided the questions
and advised they only needed at least four surveys completed per day.

They'll therefore be spending more time on social listening to inform their analysis.

Georgia

Georgia Smith

Events Manager, Events Coordination
Strategic Engagement and Protocol
Department of the Premier and Cabinet

3 P 07 3003 9119
Queensland Executive Building, Level 2, 100 George Street, Brisbanz Qi.l) 4080
Government PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

From: Emily Verstege [mailto:emily@multiplicite.com.au]

Sent: Friday, 29 lanuary 2016 9:40 AM

To: Georgia Smith <Georgia.Smith@premiers.qld.gov:au>; Emily Verstege <emily@multiplicite.com.au>
Cc: Mark Verstege <mark@multiplicite.com.au>

Subject: Re: Australia Day research update

Hi Georgia,
Thanks for sending the survey results through. The sample size is quite small, so analysis can only be
descriptive (proportions, frequencies), which Survey Monkey should be able to output for you. I think our

time would be better spent digging deeply into the social listening. How does this sit with you?

Yes, we're happy with presenting in the WB 15th February. Thursdays seem to work well for your team, so
would Thursday 18th February work OK for you?

Thanks,
Emily

On Thu, 28 Jan 2016 at 16:08 Georgia Smith <Georgia.Smith@premiers.qld.gov.au> wrote:

Hi Emily

i Thanks for your email, and the analysis to date. Almost recovered from what has been a rather large five days.

1
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Fve attached the survey results in excel format, is this suitable?

My last day in the office will be Friday 19 February. If we aim for the week of the 15 February for you to present
your findings, will that give you enough time to pull it all together?

Kind regards

Georgia

Georgia Smith
Events Manager, Events Coordination
Strategic Engagement and Protocol

Department of the Premier and Cabinet

po73co3stie m[ |

Exacutive Building, Level 2, 100 George Street, Brishane QLD ACCO

PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

From: Emily Verstege [mailta:gmily@multiplicite.com.au]

Sent: Thursday, 28 January 2016 3:35 PM

To: Georgia Smith <Georgia.Smith@premiers.gld.gov.au>; Mark Verstege <mark@multiplicite.com.au>
Subject: Australia Day research update

Hi Georgia,

Trust you're well and recovered after all the Australia Day planning and festivities.

2
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Please find attached a really high level summary of the social listening analysis to date. Note that we're
continuing to see some social media activity and will continue our monitoring until the end of this week
{(31/1). The analysis we go onto provide will be much deeper and nuanced: this is just to reassure you that
we're onto the analysis.

We look forward to receiving the survey data collected from the Bites events: ideally this would be as a
.CSV spreadsheet rather than the aggregate reporting that Survey Monkey generates. I can talk you and
your team through that if required.

We expect the analysis of both data sources will take about 7 days, and pulling our repert together will take
a few more days after that. When do you finish work and when would be best for us fo present our
findings?

Thanks,

Emily

This email is intended only for the addressee. Its use is limited to that intended by the author at the time
and it is not to be distributed without the author's consent. Unless otherwise stated, the State of Queensland
accepts no liability for the contents of this email except where subsequently confirmed in Wrrtlng The
opinions expressed in this email are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the views of the
State of Queensland. This email is confidential and may be subject to a claim of legal privilege. If you have
received this email in error, please notify the auihior and delete this message immediately

3
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Lucas Clarke

L R I
From: Georgia Smith

Sent: Wednesday, 17 February 2016 9:29 AM

To: Renaye Kelis

Subject: FW: Follow up from yesterday

FY| below update from Multiplicite.
| don’t feel comfortable sending this to Michelle, as  feel it will offend her efforts.

Do you have any positive or negative feedback on the project?

Georgia

Georgia Smith

Events Manager, Events Coordination
Strategic Engagement and Protocol
Department of the Premier and Cabinet

po73oo3olie M

Queensland Executive Building, Level 2, 100 George Street, Brisbane QLD 4000
Government PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

From: Emily Verstege [mailto:emily@multiplicite.com.au]
Sent: Tuesday, 16 February 2016 3:25 PM

To: Georgia Smith <Georgia.Smith@premiers.qld.gov.au>
Subject: Follow up from yesterday

Hi Georgia,

Just letting you know that we've re-run the social analysis to ensure we are picking up the hard work
Michelle and Elise and their teams did according to the Marketing and Comms schedules. There is
additional activity on Facebook and Twitter; as Michelle advised, although the volume is relatively low and
the points we raised yesterday about reach and engagement still stand.

We will update the report by tomoitow, but just wanted to advise so you in advance so you have all you
need going into your meetings tomorrow.

Are you happy for me to raise {he final invoice so you can get that locked in for processing before you finish
up this Friday? Or would you prefer to wait for the final version of the report? I'm happy with either - just
let me know if there is another contact I should CC in case I need to follow up after Friday.

As part of our project closure process, I want to offer the opportunity for you or your team to provide
feedback on the 'project - positive or negative. We are always learning and if there is a way we can improve,

Py~

we would love to.
It's been our pleasure working on this piece with you.

Kind regards,
Emily

1
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DIRECTOR-GENERAL’S BRIEFING NOTE Tracking Folder No. TF/15/23299

Strategy and Engagement Dacument No. DOC/15/212479
To: Director-General Approved / Not Approved / Noted
Date_: . Addressee ..........cccoeiiiinnnel,
Subject: Engagement of suppliers to undertake a Date /o

market research activity and public relations

campaigns

» RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that you

— note the engagement of Multiplicite at a total cost of $29 500 (excluding GST) to
conduct market research around attitudes to activities celebrating Australia Day

- — note the engagement of P4 Group at a total cost of $50 000 (excluding GST) to
undertake public relations campaigns for the 2016 Australia Day, Queensland Week
and Queensland Reconciliation Awards programs.

+ KEY ISSUES

— Approval was provided by the Premier to engage a market research company for an
Australia Day project (Attachment 1 — TF/15/8436).

— This market research project will look at a cross-section of ine Queensland population
and their attitudes to activities celebrating Austraiia Day. The aim is to use these
findings to influence programming and messaging for 2017 and beyond.

— Three suppliers were approached to quote for this project. Multiplicite was the
-successful tender as they demonstrated the rosiexperience in delivering similar
projects and a suitable plan was outlined.

— Approval was provided previously by you to engage a public relations agency to
manage promotional and media activity for the 2016 Australia Day, Queensland Week
and Queensland Reconciliation Awards programs (Attachment 2 - TF/15/17021).

— Three suppliers were approached to guote for this body of work. P4 Group’s proposal
was chosen as the successful tender because it was the most creative while still being
‘attainable and value for money.

e CONSULTATION

— Procurement Services, Department of the Premier and Cabinet; Department of Housing
and Public Works.

» BACKGROUND

— Budgets for market research and public relations are covered under existing project

allocations.
Comments
Sarah Buckler
Acting Deputy Director-General
Action Officer; Georgia Smith Approvals by Director / ED / DDG documented
Area: Events Coordination in nofes in TRIM
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’S BRIEFING NOTE -.:'fi_"me'cl;ing Folder No. TF/15/23299

DIRECTOR-GENER

Documen{-N\o. DOG/16/212479

To: Director-C

Date: \D Dec oS :
Subject: En 'gement of suppllers to undertake a

It is recommended that you:

- note the engagement of Multlpllmte at a

prolects and a smtable plan was outlined.

TRG)

- 'Approval was provided previously by yo
manage pr m_otlonal and medla actlv.ty

s were approacheq to cuote for th_ s body of work. P4 Group’s proposal
S 1as the successful tender because it was the most creative while still bemg
attainable and value for money,

» CONSULTATION

- - Procurement Ser\nces, epartment of the Premler and ¢
and Public Works:

« BACKGROUND

= Budgets for market iese; ch and public relations are covered Under existing project

binet; Department of Housing

Comments

Sarah Buckler
Acting Deputy Director-General

Directot /ED / DDG documenited

Action Officer: Georg'la Smlth
i in notes in TRIM

Telephone: 3003 ¢
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Lucas Clarke

From: Mandy Marquis

Sent: Thursday, 29 September 2016 8:37 AM

To: Lucas Clarke

Subject: FW: Requisition for Services - Multiplicite Pty Ltd

Attachments: Scan-to-Me from p209684.premiers.qid.gov.au 2015-11-13 113355.pdf
Importance: High

From: purchasing

Sent: Wednesday, 28 Septemhber 2016 11:15 AM

To: Mandy Marquis <Mandy.Marquis@premiers.qld.gov.au>
Subject: FW: Requisition for Services - Multiplicite Pty Ltd
Importance: High

Desley Jenkins

A/Management Accountant

Financial Services

Department of the Premier and Cabinet

s Ml \X: Po73003949%6 M|

Queensland Executive Building, Level 1, 100 George Street, Brisbane QLD 4000
Government PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

From: Reena Naidu

Sent: Friday, 13 November 2015 12:45 PM

Ta: purchasing <purchasing@premiers.qld.gov.au>
Subject: Requisition for Services - Multiplicite Pty Ltd
Importance: High

Hi Leigh
Attached is the P/O requisition with-correct form.
Please can we get this processed lrgently?

Thanks

Reenz Naidu

Project-&dministrator — Finance, Events Coordination
Strategic Engagement and Protocol

Department of the Premier and Cabinet

T iy PO730039209 M ]
Queensland Executive Building, Level 2, 100 George Street, Brishane QLD 4000
Government PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

1
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Background

Australia Day is one of our country’s most important celebrations. It
acknowledges our nation's history and connects people to each other and
their communities, their history and their shared future. Most Australians’ go
to organised Australia Day events, or join with family and friends in their
community to celebrate the day.

Australia Day events are programmed and delivered by state and tetritory
hodies i alignment with the vision of the National Australia Day Council
(NADC). Events Coordination (EC), Queensland Department of the Premier
and Cabinet (DPC) is responsible for creating and offering interactive,
relevant, local and inclusive Australia Day events in Queensland.

Within the framework of the NADC Corporate Plan (2015-19) and its own
DPC Strategic Plan (2015-19), the EC's programmiing sets out to fulfill four
"key objectives.

« Innovation. Exploring new solutions to rmaximise programming reach
and efficiency. '

+ Promotion. Generating positive links between Australia Day events
and the Queensland Government.

. Coordination. Managing national gvents at the state level consistent
with the NAGD Framework.

« Facilitation. Creating a discussion among Queenslanders about what
it means fo be Australian.

The EC, DPC approached Emily Verstege (Multiplicité) to do a market
research project exploring how Queensianders engage and respond to the
events EG, DPC delivers for Austrilia Day 2016, and how other Australian
and international jurisdictions ceiebrate their national days. The research
findings will influence the EC's Australia Day programming in 2017-18.

This document outlings Multiplicité’s revised proposed approach to the
work, based on an initial discussion with Renaye Kelis and Georgia -
Smith (EC, DPC); and subsequent scope negotiation with Georgia Smith.

We have revigwed the time required for each tasks and reduced the
number of days; we remain confident we can deliver strong and credible
findings within the time available. The cost of our revised proposal is
$29,560 (exchiding GST). We have also updated the project timeframes.

! National Australia Day Council, 2011
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Approach and methods

At Multiplicité, we believe innovation is driven by evidence, and that it
flourishes through adaptive, incremental improvements. Our approach
leverages enterprise architecture and data science to incrementally improve

user experience journgys.

We believe these three pillars form a useful framework for this reseatch
project. On the basis of our discussions to date with EC, DPC, we've
developed some draft questions against each piflar.

We will work with EC, DPC to refine these questions in the first stage of the
project. We've also noted how we will collect data to answer the questions.

Table 1: Draft research questions and methods

N
Pillar Key questions Research method

Architecture How does the Queensland Governmentwant Discusslon with EC,
. Queenslanders to experlence Australia Day? DPC staff
Business .
objectives, drivers  What Is difving the Queenstand Governmeni's ~ Review relevant
and principles approach to Australia Day programming? policy documents
| Experlence How do Queenslanders want to axperience EC, DPC & N/QADC
, g n X :
How the public Australia Day? reszarch (if available)
perceives and 2016 event-day
engages with market research
d .
Gover{?rplent an How does this align with the Queensland Synthesis of all data
its activities . o
. Government's objeciives?
How do other cities and countries around the Desktop review
world deliver their naticinal day celebrations, and '
to what extent does technology form a part of
these aclivities?
Date science How well does Giueensland's current Australia Social listening/
, Day programiming reach and engage market research
Insight driven Queengianders?
from key data
sources and VWhat-aspects of the programming are more or Soclal listening/
metrics less effective in terms of reach and market research

shgagement?
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- We will complete the project in three stages.

» Stage 1: Scoping and planning
« Stage 2: Desktop review
+ Stage 3: Social and market research

Stage 1: Scoping and planning

The purpose of this stage is to get familiar with the issues for the praject. To
begin with, we'll hold a start up meeting with EC, DPC. During the megting
we'll discuss our proposed approach, methods and key research quesiions
(and refine them if necessary).

A critical point of discussion will be the most efficient way to do the inarket
research in Stage 3 (i.e. how to reach the broadest cross-section of
Queenslanders).

After the meeting, we'll deliver a brief project plan, inciuding a schedule of
tasks, deliverables, timeframes and risk management pian.

L /{
T
Start up meeting Early November 2015

Deliverahle—Project plan Early November 2015

Stage 2: Desktop review

The purpose of this stage [s to explare how other Australian cities celebrate
Australia Day, and how other countries celebrate their national days. We'll
focus on the extent to which technology or other innovative engagement
approaches are used. We anticigate that our review will cover

. official celebrations simitar to Australia Day (e.g. Bastille Day,
Independence Day}

« unofficial celsbrations or promotions that occur alongside official
celebrations {e.g. Hottest 100 in Australia)

The search will be dane online, with email or telephone follow up to key
sources if required. We expect to develop a strategy to guide the search,
including keywords such as civic engagement, digital marketing, digital event
management togather with the names of the events or official celebraiions.

It may alsa be useful to broaden the search to discover innovative
approachss to event planning and management beyond civic celebrations.
For example, use of sacial media to drive programming and participant
engagermient before and throughout large conferences, or events.
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At the end of this stage, we'll present our findings to EC, DPC.

Key activities Timing
Desktop research Early to mid November 2015
Deliverable: Initial presentation End November 2015

Stage 3: Social and market research

The purpose of this stage is to answer key project questions about Fiow
Queenslanders experience Australia Day celebrations in 2016. It wili use two
key data collection methods: social listening and direct market research,

Social listening

We will monitor the conversation around Queensland’s Australia Day 2016
celebrations for the month of January. (This timeframe can be negotiated to
ensure it captures EC, DPC’s promotional efforts). We will use an enterprise
social analysis tool, Synthesio, to monitor social mecia (including Twitter,.
FaceBook, Linkedlin, YouTube, message boards and blogs) discussion,
including sentiment. Our analysis will identify key influencers in the
discussion, and quantify the Queensland Government's event reach and
engagement. We will develop a fist of relevant keywords and social media
accounts (note, we do not need login access to these) to guide our analysis.

Market research

We suggest a pulse survey approach to gathsring participant feedback at
Australia Day events in Queensland in 2016. These short, targeted surveys
would include a mix of open and closed guestions, for example: '

« s this the first time you've atiended an Australia Day event? [Yes/no]
o Ifyes, why did you decide to attend? [Open]
» How do you rate this event? [Likert scale]
» What is one way the Queensland Government could improve Australia
Day activities? [Cpeni
» What Australia Day sctivities would you like to see in Queensland next
year (2017)? [Openj

It may be useful fc uss questions from previous NADG work to ensure direct
comparability and trend analysis.

There are & number of survey delivery options we can explore with EC, DPC
during the first stage of the project.

+ (Faée to face al a flagship Australia Day event, noting that this method
is resource intensive but can gather deeper data. Including data
coilection as part of event-day volunteers’ roles (with guidance from
Multiplicité) is a possible strategy to broaden the reach of face to face
data collection.

» Online (by email or embedded on an event-day website), noting that
online is a more cost-effective way to reach a larger number of
geographically diverse participants.
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+ Using Australia Day Ambassadors to deliver paper-based surveys at
events, which may be an effective way to reach people living outside of
Brisbane. '

» Embedding pulse surveys into event registration, if a centralised
ticketing platform (e.g. Event Brite) is being used. cen

Itis possible we would be able to do more than one of these methods, but will
need to negotiate this with EC, DPC during the first stage of the project. We
assume that EC, DPC will be able to provide some administrative support
(e.g. printing hard copy surveys or contacting Australia Day ambassadors to
distribute surveys In regional locations) to ensure efficient, cost-effective

delivery.

For any of these options, we would use Survey Gizmo or equivalent, a cloud-
based survey tool, to build and deliver the pulse survey.

At the end of this stage, we'll deliver a summary presentation that draws on all
the data sources for the project, and includes findings and recommendations

to the EC, DPC.

.

Develop soclal listening strategy December 2015
Social listening analysis January 2016
Market research January 2016
Deliverable: Summary presentation February 2018
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Budget

Based on our proposed methods and work plan, we will deliver this project for

32,450 (excluding GST). The price is based on our standard daily rate of
excluding GST).

We are happy to negotiate changes to scope or personnel and to reflect those
changes In a revised price as part of contract negotiations.

Fees

(excl GST)

Scoping and planning

Desktop review -

Social and market analysis

TOTALS 14.75 $29,500 $32,450

On signing the contract, we will invoice for an initial fee of 40% of the agreed
contracted price. Further invoices will be issued as per the invoice schedule

below,

_ N
i Milestone Percentage ‘«:’ gjce amount (incl GST)

On signing contract 40% $12,980
Iniilal findings presentation 40% $12,980
Social and market analysis 20% $6,490
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About Multipliciteé

Multiplicité is a digital research and strategy consultancy. We work forward
thinking public and private sector organisations to fast-track their journey to
digital leadership by building engaging user experiences. Qur approach
leverages data science, enterprise architecture and experience managernent.
Our work increases engagement, activations and efficiency.

We believe our unique combination of skills and experience will ensure a high
quality and rigorous research project, completed within the expected
timeframes. Our capacity to deliver the research project and provide gound
value for money is based on the following.

Depth of experience. We have more than a decade’s experience
working with Australian and international goverament and non-
government organisations, providing insightflil answers on a range of
public policy issues. We understand conterriporary Australian public
policy, particularly the drive for efficiency and government objective to
embrace innovation and deeply engage citizens with a “digital first’
approach,

Digital natives. We've always been inmersed in digital, both in the
public and university sectors and in our-own business. We understand
what's trending (and which trends are meaningful) and skilfully
integrate this information into aur research work.

Methodological rigour. We are strongly skilled qualitative and
guantitative researchers and analysts, familiar with designing and
implementing robust data coliection tools for market research projects.
We stay up to date with new tools and approaches used in our industry
and our analysis methods are best practice.

Strong project management. We are experienced project managers,
capable of bringing projects in on time and to budget. We do this using
an agile approach—we have regular conversations with our clients and
deliver often, sowe capture our client's valuable perspectives.

Real world récommendations. We confidently synthesise data from
many sources to distil the critical points and to provide balanced
recommendations that can be easily actioned in the real world.
Straighiforward communicators. Doing good work requires great
commuriication, with our clients, stakeholders and research
parficipants alike: we're proud to be known for our strong
communication skills, Our written and spoken work is easy to
understand, engaging and structured to ensure the answers to key
project questions are front and centre.
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Dr Emily Verstege

Emily is an internationally published research academic, whose post-doctoral
work helped bring electronic survey methodology to a landmark Austraiian
longitudinal study of nurses and doctors. She swapped her ivory tower for an
evaluation consultant’s briefcase. A decade of analysing Commonwesalth,
state and territory public policies show her that insightful decisica-making
requires a broad perspective, great data, a passion for asking questions and a

willingness to think big.

In a step of boldness, she co-founded ToyFoundry, an e-commerce start up
for the mobile game industry.

Emily is known for her ability to quickly and incisively rmake complexity simple,
and for the way she easily makes meaningful connections with clients, co-
workers and stakeholders.

Trail running, cooking with whole foods and hugging her daughtér preserve
her sanity.

Mark Verstege

Mark started out developing machine-learning software for the world’s biggest
postal systems—US Postal Seivice, Royal Mall, La Poste and Australia
Post—boosting the soiting speed, reducing errors and overall, increasing cost
efficiency.

He leant his data visiaiization skills to complex spatial data systems at the
NBN Co, also growing his enterprise architecture skillset and experiencing the
complex intersection of rapidly changing technology and public palicy.

Along the way, he co-founded ToyFoundry, an e-commerce start up for the
mobile game industry. When you work with Multiplicité, you benefit from
Mark’s quist and curious thinking and love of (lots of) numbers. He's a
passionate golfer, outdoor sports enthusiast and dad.
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Governance and standards

Multiplicité Pty Ltd is an independent digital research consultancy based in
Brisbans.

Business details \')‘

ABN 41 129 742 963

ACN 129 742 963

Incorporalion date 18 February 2008

Registered office PO Box 328, Bungalow QLD 4870
4
AN

Polley number: P-fT/0/98968/15/G-0

Public liability

Insurer: Lloyds of Loncon

Sum insured: $20,000,000 (any cnre claim)

Renewal date: 12 August 2018
Professicnal Policy number: P-IT/0/98968/15/G-0
indemnity

Insurer: Lioyds of London
Sum insured: $20,000,000.{<ny one claim and in the aggregate)
Renewal date: 12 Augusi 2016

Multiplicité will meet our commitments ta this project through sound management and guality
control processes, as detailed below. '

the project. All information and documents
will be used only for the purposes of the
project, will be kept secure and not
divulged to another party.

The proposed team will be available ie do
the work within the timeframes specified.
Any necessary changes to the team or
timeframes will be made with voul
consent. On completion of the project, ali relevant

Our project manager, Erify Verstege, wil documents will be returned to the source

give regular progress-updaies to ensure
you are aware of any emnerging risks or
blockers that couid jeopardise the project.
We expect you will advise us immediately
if any project iisks o blockers under your
responsibility arise. '

Our projecis are conducted within the
Austraiizn Market and Soctal Research

Society (AMSRS) Professional Standards,

Emliy Verstege is a full member of
AMSRS, We wil seek the appropriate
sorisent from all project participants, as
appropriste.

We recognise the sensitivity of this project
and will maintain strict confidentiality of all

data, Information and documentation
provided or obtained during the course of

organisetion. We are willing to sign a
statutory declaration that we retaln no
record in any form of the idenlity or
characteristics of project participants.

We are not aware of any actual or
potential conflict of interest that would

impact on us doing this project.
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Quéensland-Gavernment ..z

Contract Details
DPC-35-2015 - Australia Day market research

Events Coordination, Departmenit of the Premier and
Cabinet

and

Multiplicite Pty Ltd
ABN:41 129 742 963

The Departrient of the Premier & Gabinet, Events Coordination:and Multiplicite DPG-35-2015
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Conlract Details (v2.0) N Page 3 of 10

1 Introduction

This whole document forms part of the Contract.

The Supplier must complete all sections of this document. The Supplier must not make
changes to the structure of this document. If the Supplier does not agree with any séc
of this document that have been completed by the Customer, the Supplier must id
proposed changes to the Contract in section 3.4 (Contract departures — Supplier ¢

Changes which do not comply with the requirements in this section do not form part
Contract '

2 General information

1 Customer Name: Depariment of the Premierand Gabinet

| ABN: 65959415 158

Pasition: A/Events Manager; Events Coordination,
Depariment of the Premier and Cabinet

Street address: Executive Building, Level 2, 100 George Street,
Brisbane, QLD 4000

Postal addregs: PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

Email: georgia, smith@premiers.qld.gov.au

s.and other communication relating to the Gontract are to be sent
& CuUsiomer at the détails set out in this'item, or any updated details
the Customer provides fo the Supplier in writing.

3 ine: Multiplicite
| ABN or ACGN: 41129742963
4 ‘Supplier | Contact person: Emily Verstege
- | details Ny L
Pasition; Project Manager
Postal atddress: PO Box 328, Bungalow QLD 4870
Email: . emily@multiplicite.com.au
All notices and other communication rélating to the Contract are o be sent
to the Supplier at the details set out in this item, or-any updated delails that
the Supplier provides to the Supplier in writing.
5 Subcontractor(s) Not Applicable

The Departmenl of the Premier & Cabinet, Evenls Coordination and Multiplicite DPC.35:2015
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Contract Details (v2 D) Page'4 of 10

November 2015
Mareh 2016

Not Applicasle

! Binding Scheme applicable: Not Applicable
'+ Bummary of liahility cap: Not Applicable

Workers compensation insurance as reqtiired by law

Puiblic liability and produets Hability insurance:
Minirum amount: $5 Million
3 Professional indef\i'nriit'_y insurance:

| Minimum amiount; $5 Miliion

| To assist the Supplier in ¢btaining feedback, Events Coordination WIII
| facilitate access to the community through the 2016 '
(delivered by the Gueensland Government) being held throughout
Qiieensland,

Site details Delivery address for Goods:  Not Applicable

Loz a‘tlon{s} for prov:dmg Semces Not Appltcable

A1 Not Applicable
12 | Security : Mot Applicable
requirements
% 13 Nil

3 Terms andconditions of the Contract

3.1 Definitions and interpretation

The definitions and rules of interpretation applicable to.the Contract are availa
Department of Housing and Public Works website, currerit as at Oclober 2015,

3.2 Base terims

The Départment of the Prarier & Cabinet, Events Coordination and Multiplicile DPC-35-
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Coritract Details (v2.0) Page 5 of 10

The General'Contract Conditions apply to the Contract. A copy of these terms is attached, current
as at October 2015,

3.3 Contract departures - Customer changes

Not Applicable

3.4 Contract departures — Supplier changes

Not Applicable

4 Forming the Contract

4.1 Acknowledgements and certifications

The Suppliet:

(a) agrees to provide the Goods, Services and other Deliverables to the Customer-on the terms
described in the Contract.

(b} certifies that it has read, understands, and complies withall the requirements of the
Contract.

(c) acknowledges that only proposed Contract changes which comply with sections 0 and 3.4
fofm part-of the Centract.

(d) represerits that all the infarmation provided t by it and referenced in the Contract is complete,
accurate, up to date and not misleading in- ny way.

(e) acknowledges that the Customer is relying on the information provided by the Supplier and
referenced in the Contract in entering into the Contract.

() acknowledges that: t"

4.2 Forming the Contract

4.21 Agreement by Supplier

The Supplier wili sign in this section. By sighing, the Supplier is offering to enter the Contract on
the terms set out in this document. If the Supplier does not execute this document itself, it must (if
the Customer reguests) provide adequate evidence that the signatory is properly authorised to
Execute this agreement.

If the parties agree any changes to this document after the date of the Supplier’s signature (but
before the Customer accepts the Supplier’s offer as described below), the Supplier and Customer

will prepare a new version of the docliment incorporating the agreed changes, which will replace
this document. Thé Supplier will sign the hew document, offering to enter the Contract:on the

amended terms.

The Departmsiit of the Pramiar & Cabinet, Events Coordination and Multipticite DPC~35-2015
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Contract Details (v2.0)

W

EXECUTED for and on behaif of

...............................................................

Multipticite Pty Ltd
by its euthonised re resentahve inthe
presence of:

Name,of witness {block letters)

ALDERE Y Quos]

7 ,,;i:AddrESS

the sngnatory is duly autho
on behalf of the Suppher

. Page6of10 -

4.2.2 - Agreement by Customer

The Customer may accept the Suppl[er 5 offer e|ther by cfgn,r-'1 in thls__sectlon of separate[y |

S bl St Nl L0 N o 1 St e e e N St

..... L
Warrants
it this:otfe

B\; execut
signatory

Ve (block Ietters)

NI mz:w//ww\/

ntative

...............

The Department of the Premier & Cahingt, Evi

Jela) a::uJ Muit[phcne DP(“ 3‘572015
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Contract Details.(v2.0) Page 7 of 10

Schedule 1 - Requirements

The Supplier must provide the Services specified below to the Customer, in accordance with the
Requiremeénts. described in this Schedule.

1.  Requirements for Services
The projest includes the following three phases!

1. Research existing approaches to Australian (and interational) national day/civic celebrations fo
understand what events and activities are successful, for wham and in what context. Research
should target Queenslanders of all cultural backgrounds, age groups, income ievels and
geographic areas.

2. Gather cammunity feedback (in person, social listening or other methods) on 2016 Australia
Day célebrations throughout Queensland to understand how well avents meet community

. expectations and identify relevant gaps.

3. Provide recommendations for programming of the 2017 Australia Day celebrations across
Queensland based on in depth research conducted in phases two and three.

The following items will be required in conclusion of the project:

« 2 detailed repoit with key recommendations, verbatim quates and a breakdown of feedback resuilts.
« g full presentation to members of the Events Coordination tgam with an explanation of the key
findings and recommendations included in the report:

2. Key Personnel
Not Applicable
3.  Other Requirements

‘Not Applicable

The Department of the Premier & Gabiriet, Evenls Coordination and Mulliplicite DPG-35-2015
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Page 8-of 10-

Schedule 2 — Price and Payment Terms

21 Price

{

- Fees

Fees (excl GST) incl GST)

Scopingand planning

Desktop review

Social and market
analysis : — S |

TOTALS 14,75
22  Pricereviews
Not Applicable

2.3  Payment plan/milestones

Invoice amount

(inc GST)

On sigriing contract 40%. %12 980

$12 980

Social arid market ahalysis 20%. - |86490

2.4  Payment methods

Gustomer to:pay via EFTupon receipt-oef invoices from the Supplier
26  Discounts of rébates
Not Applicable

2.6  Other pricing inforimation
‘Not Applicable

The Departmenit of the Prériier& Gabiriat, Everits Coordination a Mitiplicite DPC-35:2015
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Contract Detalls (v2.0)

This Schedule describes how the Supplier's perfoermance will be measured under the Contract,

including:

¢ Key performance indicators, minimum service level requirements, acceptance criteris o other

performance measures proposed by the Customer

» Details of how KPIls will be measured (e.g. identify reports)

+ Conseduences if performance is unsatisfactory,

Key Performance Indicators / Service Levels

L P Nl

across all projest phases
and recaminendaticns in
respense toiey
research gliesfions.

date, as agreed
with Customer.

Stage 1 - To fariliarise Supplier | Delivery of a brief project | Receintof project | Full refund for stage 1 of the
scoping and | and Cuslomer withthe | plan, plan by dug date, | project.
plannirig key issues for the projecl ) as agreed with
and ouline proposed | Planshould include Cugiomer,
approach, methods and | Schedule.of tasks, !
key research questions. deliverables, umewames
and risk managenient
plan.
Stage 2- Toexplore how ather Delivery of phase ong Delivery.of phase | Full refund for stages and .2 of
desktop Australian cities, -and presentation. one presentation | the project,
review ofher countries celebrate | 0 by due date, as
their national days. Overview of desktop agreed with
rasearch findings. Custoimer.
Stage 3= Summary of social Deiivery of summary Dellvery of Failure fo contract Supplier in
social and tistening and market pirgsentation and final summary future.
market. research findings. | report. presentation and
resaaich QOutling of data retsived final reporl by dug

THé Departient of the Premier & Gepiriet, Evéiits Coordination and Multiplicite DPC-35-2015
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THis Schedulé sets out governance afrarigements applicablé to the Gonitract.
41  Repotrting requirements
The Supplier must provide the following reports:

A final report that summarises all data collated throughout the project, including findings and
recommendations is due early March 2016,

4.2  Escalation of issues

Any issuss that should arise that cannot be seftled between the parties, should be bought to the
aftention of Louise Litchfield, Executive Director, Corporate Governance, Départment of the Prernier
and Cabinet.

4.3 Other governance or quality assurance requirements:

Not Applicable

The Departinant 6f the Premier & Cabinet, Events Coordination and Multiplicite DPC-85-20
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Lucas Clarke

L R R ———
From: Georgia Smith <Georgia.Smith@premiers.gld.gov.au>
. Sent: Tuesday, 10 November 2015 2:35 PM
To: Mandy Marquis
Subject: RE: Draft contract and conditions of contract
Attachments: 2015-11-10-Signed Contract.pdf; Multiplicite Certificates of Currency.pdf
Hi Mandy

As requested, please find attached copy of the fully executed contract for the Australia Day market research project.

| have also attached the supplier’s certificates of currency, if required for your records.

Many thanks again for your assistance with this process.

Kind regards
Georgia

Georgia Smith

Events Manager, Events Coordination
Strategic Engagement and Protocol
Department of the Premier and Cabinet

Sy P 07 3003 9119 M
Queensland Executive Building, Level 2, 100 George Street, Brishana Quir 4000
Government PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

From: Mandy Marquis

Sent: Tuesday, 3 November 2015 10:28 AM

To: Georgia Smith <Georgia.Smith@premiers.ald.gov.au>

Subject: FW: Draft contract and conditions of contract

Hi Georgia

I've tried to phone a couple of timesand haven’t been able to reach you. | thought | would send you an email.

On the front cover of the contract you need to Include the title of the procurement e.g market research.

When you issue the coniract e Multiplicite you will need to ask them to issue you with thelr insurance certificates.
have deleted section 3#-contract departures-supplier changes and included not applicable.

In Schedule 3 — Perfcrmance Measurement-stage 3 consequence of failure- a full refund for entire project — the
supplier may not agree to this it seems very harsh but it is your call.

The attached genera! contract conditions need to be issued with the contract.
A purchase order should be raised for all purchases over $5,000 once the contract is fully executed.
Happy to discuss further.

Kind Regards
1
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Mandy

Mandy Marquis
‘Nyﬁ?_ Principal Procurement Advisor
= ér Y Corporate Governance
g 2 Department of the Premier and Cabinet

T P 07 3003 9064
Queensland Fxecutive Building, Level 1, 100 George Street, Brisbane QLD 4000
Government PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

From: Mandy Marquis
Sent: Monday, 2 November 2015 2:15 PM

To: Georgia Smith <Georgia.Smith@premiers.gld.gov.au>
Subject: RE: Draft contract and conditions of contract

Hi Georgia

Are you able to give me a quick call when you are free. | would just like to talk to you about a couple of things in the
contract, | just think it’s easier then emailing.

Cheers

Mandy

Mandy Marquis
% y  Principal Procurement Advisor
- Ldq(ZyF Corporate Governance

@ Iy Department of the Premier and Cabinet

S P 07 3003 9064 M
Queensland Executive Building, Level 1, 100 George Street, Brishane QLD 4000
Government PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

From: Georgia Smith

Sent: Monday, 2 November 2015 12:39 Pid

To: Mandy Marquis <Mandy.Marquis@premicrs.gld.gov.au>
Subject: RE: Draft contract and conditions of contract

Hi Mandy

Please find attached draft contrachfor the Australia Day market research project for your review.

| have highlighted a few items in yellow. Can you please confirm these are to be corﬁpleted by the Supplier.
Many thanks in advance.

Georgia

Georgia Smith

A/Events Manager, Events Coordination
Strategic Engagement and Protocol
Department of the Premier and Cabinet

" P07 30039119 M
Queensland Executive Building, Level 2, 100 George Street, Brisbane QLD 4000
Government PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

2

RTID327.pdf - Page Number: 103 of 240



From: Mandy Marquis

Sent: Thursday, 22 October 2015 8:49 AM

To: Georgia Smith <Gegrgia.Smith@premiers.gld.gov.au>
Subject: Draft contract and conditions of contract

Hi Georgia

As discussed yesterday | have attached the template contract and the conditions of contract (T&C’s).

Populate what you can and then I can review the contract, if there is anything that you are unsure of or any
questions please don’t hesitate to contact me and we can work through the contract together.

A purchase order should be raised for all purchases over $5,000.
Refer to the Corporate Procurement Policy below:

http://dpcintranet/docs/DPC Documents/Procurement Corporate Policy.trs
http://dpcintranet/docs/DPC Documents/Procurement - Agency Guidelines.ir5

Cheers

Mandy

Mandy Marquis

Principal Procurement Advisor
Corporate Governance

Department of the Premier and Cahinet

P 07 3003 9064 M ] O

Quesland Executive Building, Level 1, 100 Gaatge Street, Brishane QLD 4000
Government PG Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

3
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Schedule of Cover ' Our Reference: 1508
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY LIABILITY

INSURED:

Multiplicité Pty Ltd
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Lucas Clarke

T R
From: Mandy Marquis <Mandy.Marquis@ premiers.gld.gov.au>
Sent: Tuesday, 3 November 2015 10:28 AM
To: Georgia Smith
Subject: FW: Draft contract and conditions of contract
Attachments; GeneralContractConditionsV2.pdf; ContractDetailsv3.doc

Hi Georgia
I've tried to phone a couple of times and haven’t been able to reach you. | thought | wouid send you an email.
On the front cover of the contract you need to include the title of the procurement e.g market research.

When you issue the contract to Multiplicite you will need to ask them to issue you with their insurance certificates. |
have deleted section 3.4 contract departures-supplier changes and included not applicable.

In Schedule 3 — Performance Measurement-stage 3 consequence of failur2+ a fuil refund for entire project — the
supplier may not agree to this it seems very harsh but it is your call.

The attached general contract ¢onditions need to be issued with the confract;
A purchase order should be raised for all purchases over $5,000 oince the contract is fully executed.
Happy to discuss further,

Kind Regards

Mandy

Mandy Marquis

Principal Procurement Advisor
Corporate Governance

Department of the Premier anid Cabkinet

—

IV1 I
<A\ P 07 3003 5064 /)
Queensland Executive Building, Level 1, 100 George Street, Brisbane QLD 4000
Government PO Box 15185, City East, QLL-4G02

From: Mandy Marquis

Sent: Monday, 2 November 2015(2:15 PM

To: Georgia Smith <Georgia/Smith@premiers.gld.gov.au>
Subject: RE: Draft contract and-conditions of contract

Hi Georgia

Are you able to'give inea quick call when you are free. I would just like to talk to you about a couple of things in the
contract, | just think.it's easier then emailing.

Cheers

Mandy

1
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Mandy Marquis

Principal Procurement Advisor
Corporate Governance

Department of the Premier and Cabinet

[
B RNl P 07 3003 9064 M

Queensland Executive Building, Level 1, 100 Gearge Street, Brishane QLD 4000
Government PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

From: Georgia Smith

Sent: Monday, 2 November 2015 12:39 PM

To: Mandy Marquis <Mandy.Marguis@premiers.ald.gov.au>
Subject: RE: Draft contract and conditions of contract

Hi Mandy
Please find attached draft cantract for the Australia Day market research project for your review.
| have highlighted a few items in yellow. Can you please confirm these are to be completed by the Supplier.

Many thanks in advance.

Georgia

Georgia Smith

A/Events Manager, Events Coordination
Strategic Engagement and Protocol
Department of the Premier and Cabinet

P 07 3003 9119 IV‘

Queensland Exacutive Building, Level 2, 100 George Street, Erisbane QLD 4000
Government PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

From: Mandy Marquis

Sent: Thursday, 22 October 2015 8:49 AM

To: Georgia Smith <Georgia.Smith@premiers.qld.gov.au>
Subject: Draft contract and conditions.¢f contract

Hi Georgia
As discussed yesterday | have attached the template contract and the conditions of contract (T&C's}.

Populate what you can and then | can review the contract, if there is anything that you are unsure of or any
questions please dor’t hesitate to contact me and we can work through the contract together.

A purchase order ¢chouid be raised for all purchases over $5,000.
Refer to the Corperate Procurement Policy below:

http://dpcintranet/docs/DPC Documents/Procurement Corporate Policy.tr5
http://dpcintranet/docs/DPC Documents/Procurement - Agency Guidelines.trb

Cheers
2
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Mandy Marquis

Principal Procurement Advisor
Corporate Governance

Department of the Premier and Cabinet

P 073003 9064 M
Queensland Executive Building, Level 1, 100 George Street, Brisbane QLD 4000
Government PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

RUDAY AT TTOTL]

3
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ENT Vendor Master Data Maintenance

* Mandatory Field

| ein o Enqulriea: Vandof Master Dala Unit_Emall; PAmaslerdalacustogians@dsiila.qld gov.au : I
Purchasing organisation

Agency* ‘Company code® Agcount group

|DPC “1041 DPC |F"GEN Extarnal General vVéndors J
GCPID Master Data action*

J | [/ create [7] Change [ Extend [] Block [] Unblock

Soction 1: Vendor type ] I_

Business/Company [] Governmient Entity [ Erployee

Section 2: Vendor detail

VAR

A\'/

Name (business/company) .-

— Trading hame {plisiness/company) ... .

[Muripiicite Pty Lt

||Mu|tiplici(e Py Ld

Contact name (biisingss/company)

Head &fiice telephone number -Alternate payae

Perniitted payee

i ~ ]

Cleararice required by customer [ ] No [} Yes

Vendor number {if Known)

BEEENEEN

| |1 Atternate Payee

Postcote

‘Vendor address

S —

| Alderley QLD
Email address Telephone numbe;'_] Fax.number . Mobile riu _b'_'ér'
Ien‘jIly@multiplicite.com.au A _ JIEM?S'[_QGQZ ‘
[] Postsl address (if di 1r

[] Post

ferred contact method for remittance advice [/] Email [] Fax
Section 3: Vendor account details

Payrment method
| {#7] EFT [] Cheque

BSB nurnber, Account number Ats6UAL name

Lol +Jal-[2]7 e][z2] 1{o]5[o] 1]4]0l7]MutiviciePtyLtd
—

7] Yes [] No

|

Yes [ ] Na

Does the Vendor have an ABN?
ABN number [41129742963

fignt for SAP to be Updated as detailed

fiavé dltached all supporting documentatian,

abiove

DALIIev_eI (if applicable) .

Naig . . DAL Nlevel (if applicable)  Namg.
ﬁéena.b!ai_d,u R/ J Rengye Kells .
Tosilion tills _ Telephone number F_"osi"tlﬂn tile Telephone number
ject Adminlsirator - Finance _3!07300'39'109 | [abirector - Events Goordination _|[o7 30030116 |
Bignatur . / Date Qs — Date e
_ | |[1or11i2015 | g oy
i N

Bisase forward completed forri ta: Financial Services, Level 1 Execullve Bldg

Prlvacy slatement | ; K . - T ‘ R
‘e Infafrmiaticn belng collecled fr tnia fasir is1o7 e purngge of manadlng lhe Minanclal scedvintabiliy refvaiit to Guaensiand Governimen and [s disthrised under the Finanekal Accauntablity Act 200
persanal Informalion may be discloséd wihin ie Qlueensland Govarnmiarl, conliacted servide providats or financlal instutions only &5 Is necessary for the performancs of tha finanelal funcllgns perform
\hese botljes, Your personzi delails il st 52 disolosed Lo agy olhierlhird parly or-used for anyhlher puipose withoul yelir conisen, unless atlherised or required lo da so by faw..

650010 v24 Ocléber 2015 Page 1of1

Queensland Shared -_SerVicéé’.’
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DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER AND CABINET
VENDOR DETAILS

VENDOR NAME: Multiplicité Pty Ltd

| ABN:41 128 742 963 /

ADDRESS: Alderley Q 4051 _  a—
*E-MAIL ADDRESS: emily@multiplicite.com.au -/

TELEPHONE NUMBER: 0417619662

*FAX NUWBER: None AN
*MOBILE NUMBER: 0417619662 N

PAYMENT TERMS 7 days |

BANK DETAILS, (FOR EFT PAYMENTs)

BSB NUMBER: 014278

ACCOUNT NUMBER: 219591407

ACCOUNTNAME: . Multiplicte Pty Ltd

{Confirmiing the detalls above)
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Current details for ABN 41 129 742 963 | ABN Lookup Page 1 of 1

smeres | ABN ook

,-\u|h~.1l1“al;, Ba |i'n‘j-v|uﬂqluzr

ABN details

Entity hame: Multiplicite Pty Ltd
7 ABN status: Active frém 18 Feb 2008
Entity type: ::  Australian Private Company N
Goods & Services Tax (GST): Registered from 18 Feb 2008
Malin business location: QLD 4120

Business name(s)

Business name From
Multlplicite Digital & 06 May 2015

ASIC registration - ACN or ARBN
129 742 963 View recprd on the ASIC website &

Deductible gift recipient status
Not entitled to receive tax deductible gifts

ABN last updated: 28 Sep 2015 Record extracted: 10 Nov 2015

Disclaimer

The Reglstrar makes every reasgriable effort to maintain currentand accurate information on
this site, The Commissioner of Taxation advises that if you use ABN Lookup for information
about another entity for taxation purpdses and that information turns gut to he incerrect, in
certain circumstances you will be protected frem liability, For more infarmation see
disclaimer.

http://www.abr.business.gov.au/SearchByAbn,aspx ?Search Text=41129742963 10/11/2015
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Invoice: 10

Multiplicité Pty Ltd
Greenslopes, Queensland 4120
Australia

Mehiie: 0417619662
www.rmultiplicite.com.au

Bill to: Invoice number: 10

Department of Premier and Cabinet Invoice date: November 10, 2015

Georgia Smith : Due date: November 10, 2015

Executive Building, Level 2, 100 George Street, Amount due $12 980.00

Brisbane, Q 4000 {(AUDY):

georgia.smith@premiers.qld.gov.au

SERVICE aTy PRICE AMOUNT
S i $11,800.00 $11,800.00
tesearch Project: Milestone Payment 1

Acct:; Multiplicité Pty Ltd Subtetzi (AUD): $11,800.00

SWIFT: ANZBAU3M GST {#1129742963): $1,180.00

BSR: 014278 ol (ALDY:

Acct # 219591407 otal (AUD): $12,980.00
Amount Due

$12,980.00

Pay this invoice online at:
waveapps.com/s5nupd-gpys2v
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Lucas Clarke

. R I
From: Georgia Smith
Sent: Friday, 13 November 2015 4:21 PM
To: Reena Naidu
Subject: FW: QSS Finance FI0375264: URGENT: DPC - 1041: Request to Raise PO -
Multiplicite Pty Ltd 4500275651
Attachments: 4500275651 gr.pdf, 4500275651 v.pdf
Folfow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed
Georgia Smith

Events Manager, Events Coordination
Strategic Engagement and Protocol
Department of the Premier and Cabinet

y : P 0730039119 M
Queensland Executive Building, Level 2, 100 George Street, Brisbane QLD 4000
Government PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

From: Queensland Shared Services [mailto:gss@dsitia.qld.gov.aa]

Sent: Friday, 13 November 2015 3:00 PM

To: purchasing <purchasing@premiers.qld.gov.au>

Cc: Georgia Smith <Georgia.Smith@premiers.gld.gov.au>

Subject: QSS Finance FI0375264: URGENT: DPC - 1041: Request to Raise PO - Multiplicite Pty Ltd 4500275651

Dear PURCHASING,

Attached are both copies of the above purchase order.

Record Details:

Number: FI0375264

Category: Paper Requisition

Subject: URGENT: DPC/< 1041: Request to Raise PO - Multiplicite Pty Ltd 4500275651
Description: email received fiom: purchasing@premiers.qld.gov.au

FOR URGENT PROCESSING:
Hi Team,
Could you please idise a purchase order to Multiplicite Pty Ltd for the Australia Day Project.
Please include the below in the long text of the last line item of the purchase order:
For the provision of services relating to the Australia Day Market Research Project for Events Coordination
in the Department of the Premier and Cabinet.
Once raised, please forward PO to this e-mail.
The requisition for goods/services, project supporting documentation and budget are attached.
Many thanks,
Leigh
[cid:image003.png@01D11E1D.773AC480]Leigh McGarry
1
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Advisor - Finance
Financial Services
Department of the Premier and Cabinet

P 07 3003 9054 E leigh. megarry@premiers.gqld. gov.au
Executive Building, Level 1, 100 George Street, Brisbane QLI 4000
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

Attached is the P/O requisition with correct form.

Please can we get this processed urgently?

Thanks
[cid:image006.png@01D11E1D.773AC480]|Reena Naidu
Project Administrator - Finance, Events Coordination
Strategic Engagement and Protocol

Department of the Premier and Cabinet

P 0730039109 M
Executive Building, Level 2, TO0 George Street, Brisbane QLI 4000

PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

This email is intended only for the addressee. Its use is litnited to that intended by the author at the time and
it is not to be distributed without the author's consent. Uniess otherwise stated, the State of Queensland
accepts no liability for the contents of this email except where subsequently confirmed in writing. The
opinions expressed in this email are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the views of the
State of Queensland. This email is confidential and may be subject to a claim of legal privilege. If you have
received this email in error, please notify the author and delete this message immediately This E-Mail is
intended only for the addressee. Its use is limited to that intended by the author at the time and it is not to be
distributed without the author's consent. Unless otherwise stated, the State of Queensland accepts no
liability for the contents of this E-Mai! except where subsequently confirmed in writing. The opinions
expressed in this E-Mail are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the views of the State of
Queensland. This E-Mail is confidentiz) and may be subject to a claim of legal privilege. If you have
received this E-Mail in error, picase notify the author and delete this message immediately.

Status: Awaiting Validation

Created: 13-11-2015 14:15:23 AEST

Kind Regards,

Brigida Esposiia

Phone: 5514 9303

Operational Procurement
Transaction Business Services
Client Services, Finance
Queensland Shared Services
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Ref:MSG9732467
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Invoige: 12

Multiplicité Pty Ltd

Greenslopes, Queensland 4120
Australia

Makiie: 0417619662
www.multiplicite.com.au

Bill to:

Invoice number:

12

Department of Premier and Cabinet Invoice date; December 18, 2015
Georgia Smith Due date: December 18, 2015
Executive Building, Lavel 2, 100 George Street, Amount due: $12.980.00
Brisbane, Q 4000
georgia.smith@premiers.qld.gov.au
SERVICE o7y PRICE AMOUNT
Consulting : _ i $11,800.00
Australia Day Research Project - Milestan . )
Acct: Multiplicité Pty Ltd Subtetal (AUD): $11,800.00
SWIFT: ANZBAU3M GST (41129742963); $1,180.00
BSB: 014278 Total (AUD):
Acct #: 219591407 otal (AUDY: $12,980.00
Amount Due

$12,980.00

Pay this invoice online at:
waveapps,.com/7mnsvj-travry

e B
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Australia Day Market Research Project

Multiplicité Pty Ltd

Alderley, Queensland 4051
Australia

Mohile: 0417619662
www.multiplicite.com.au

BILL TO invoice Number.” 14

Department of Premier and Cabinet

Georgia Smith P.0./S.0. Numbker: DPC-35-2015
Executive Building, Level 2, 100 George

Street, Brisbane, Q 4000 Invoice Date: February 18, 2016

Payment Due: February 18, 2016
$6,490.00

georgia.smith@premiers.gld.gov.au

Amoutit

Consulting 1 $5,900.00 $5,900.00
Advice

Subtotal: $5,900.00

GST 10% (41129742963): $590.00

Total: $6,490.00

Amount Due (AUD); $6,490.00

Pay this invoice online at:

Notes

Acct: Multiplicité Pty Lid
SWIFT: ANZBAU3M
BSB: 014278

Acct #: 219591407
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Lucas Clarke

From: Georgia Smith

Sent: Monday, 9 November 2015 10:29 AM

To: Reena Naidu

Subject: RE: Purchase order request - Australia Day market research
Attachments: 2015-11-09-Vendor Details Form.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Completed

Hi Reens

Please find vendor details form attached.

Thanks
Georgia

Georgia Smith

A/Events Manager, Events Coordination
Strategic Engagement and Protocol
Department of the Premier and Cabinet

s A\ P 07 3003 9119 M

Queensland Executive Building, Level 2, 100 George Street, Brisbane Q{4000
Government PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

From: Reena Naidu

Sent: Friday, 6 November 2015 5:02 PM

To: Georgia Smith <Georgia.Smith@premiers.qld.gov.iau>

Subject: RE: Purchase order request - Austraiia Day market research

Hi Georgia

Can you please request these guys to-compiete vendor details form as | will require to do their vendor number
which is required to raise purchase ordei?

Reena Naidu

Project Adminisirator — Finance, Events Coordination
Strategic Engagement and Protocol

Department of the Premier and Cabinet

po7goo3vioe M |
Queensland Executive Building, Level 2, 100 George Street, Brisbane QLD 4000
Government PC Bax 15185, City East, QLD 4002

From: Georgia Smith

Sent: Thursday, 5 November 2015 4:21 PM

To: Reena Naidu <Reena.Naidu@premiers.gld.gov.au>

Subject: RE: Purchase order request - Australia Day market research

Hi Reens

1
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Please find quotation attached.

Contract will be issued to them early next week.

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

Sent: Thursday, 5 November 2015 3:56 PM

To: Georgia Smith <Georgia.Smith@premiers.qld.gov.au>

Subject: RE: Purchase order request - Australia Day market research

Hi Georgia, | will need copy of the full quotation/ agreement to do the purchase order?

Thanks

Reena Naidu

Project Administrator — Finance, Events Coardipation
Strategic Engagement and Protocol

Department of the Premier and Cabingt

o A\ Po730039108 M|

Queensland Executive Building, Level 2, 100 Georga Stiet, Brisbana QLD 4000
Government PO Box 15185, City East, QLG 4002

From: Geecrgia Smith

Sent: Thursday, 5 November 2015 2:34 PM

To: Reena Naidu <Reena.Naidu@premiers.gld.gov.au>

Subject: Purchase order request - Adstralia Day market research

Hi Reens

Can you please raise a turchase order for Multiplicite for the Australia Day market research project.

The payment schedule/is as follows:

| Milestone 77—

Invoice amount {inc GST)

- Percentage

On signing contract {(Nov) 40% $13 098
Initial findings presentation 40% $13 094
Social and market analysis 20% $6549

Customer is to pay via EFT upon receipt of invoices from the Supplier.

Do we need them to complete the Vendor Details Form?

2
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Thanks
Georgia

Georgia Smith

A/Events Manager, Events Coordination
Strategic Engagement and Protocol
Department of the Premier and Cabinet

TUCAR AT FIDELIS P0O730039119 M
Queensland Executive Bullding, Level 2, 100 George Street, Brisbane QLD 4000
Government PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

3
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DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER AND CABINET

VENDOR DETAILS
VENDOR NAME: Multiplicité Pty Ltd
ABN: 41 129 742 963
ADDRESS] Alderley Q 4051

*E-MAIL ADDRESS: emily@multiplicite.com.au

TELEPHONE NUMBER: 0417619662

*FAX NUMBER: None

“MOBILE NUMBER: 0417619662

PAYMENT TERMS: 7 days

BANK DETAILS {FOR EFT PAYMENTS)

BSB NUMBER: 014278

ACCOUNT NUMBER: 219591407

ACCOUNT NAME: Multiplicite Pty Ltd

X7~

Vendor's Name and Signature
(Confirming the details above)
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Queensland Government . 588

Contract Detalls
DPC-35-2015 - Australia Day market research

Events Coordination, Department of the Premier and
Cabinet

and

Multiplicite Pty Ltd
ABN:41 129 742 983

The Department of the Premier & Cabinet, Events Coordination and Multiplicite DPC-35-2015
RTID327.pdf - Page Number: 130 of 240




Contract Details (v2.0) Page 2 of 10
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Contract Details (v2.0) Page 3 of 10

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
of this document that have been completed by the Customer, the Supplier musi identify its

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

| Details

"/ Name: Department of the Premierand Cabinet

ABN: 65959415158

1 Contact person: Geargia Smith

details

| Position: AlEvents Manager, Events Coordination,
Department of the Premier and Cabinet

Executive Building, Level 2, 100 George Street,
Brishane, QLD 4000

Street address:

Postal address: PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

Email: georgia. smith@premiers.qgld.gov.au

All notices-and other communication relating to the Contract are to be sent
to the Cusiomer at the details set out in this item, or any updated details
that thie Customer provides to the Supplier in writing.

| Narne:

| ABN or ACN:

Multiplicite
41120742963

4 Supplier co.tac.t
details

. ::5_5 Contact person:

Position:
Postal address:

Email:

Emily Verstege
Project Manager
PO Box 328, Bungalow QLD 4870

emily@multiplicite.com.au

© All notices and other communication relating to the Contract are to be sent
. to the Supplier at the details set out in this item, or any updated details that
'| the Supplier provides to the Supplier in writing.

: ngi_:'ractor(s}:

Not Applicable

The Department of the Premier & Cabinet, Events Coordination and Multiplicite DPC-35-2015
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Contract Details (v2.0) Page 4 of 10

Details

November 2015

3 itract term Start date;

End date: March 2016
Extension options: Not Applicable
7 Capon Iiébility : The cap on liability is three (3) times the total of all prices payable under

the contract.

Binding Scheme applicable: Not Applicaile

Summary of liability cap: Not Applicable

Insurance : Workers compensation insurance as required by law

Public liability and products liability insurance:
Minimum amount: $5 Million
Professional indemnity insuraince:

Minimum amount; $5 Miliion

Customer inputs To assist the Supplier in‘obiaining feedback, Events Coordination will

' ' facilitate access tothe community through the 2016 Australia Day events
{delivered by the Queensland Government) being held throughout
Queensland.

| Site details - - Delivery addross for Goods: Not Applicable

Lecation(s) Tor providing Services: Nof Applicable

11 Naot Applicable
12 siot Applicable
13 | Conflict of Intezest, | Nif

3 Terms and conditions of the Contract

3.1 Definitions and interpretation

The definitions and rules of interpretation applicable to the Contract are available on the
Department of Housing and Public Works website, current as at October 2015.

3.2 Base ferms

The Department of the Premier & Cabinet, Events Coordination and Multiplicite DPC-35-2015
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Contract Details (v2.0} Page 5 of 10

The General Contract Conditions apply to the Contract. A copy of these terms is attached, current
as at October 2015.

3.3 Contract departures — Customer changes

Not Applicable

3.4 Contract departures — Supplier changes

Not Applicable

4 Forming the Contract

4.1 Acknowledgements and certifications

The Supplier:

(a) agrees to provide the Goeds, Services and other Deliverables to the Customer on the terms
described in the Contract.

(b) certifies that it has read, understands, and complies witti all the requirements of the
Contract.

(c) acknowledges that only proposed Contract chianges which comply with sections 0 and 3.4
form part of the Contract.

(d} represents that all the information provided by it and referenced in the Contract is complete,
accurate, up to date and not misleading in-any way.

(e) acknowledges that the Customer is relyirig on the information provided by the Supplier and
referenced in the Contract in entering into the Contract.

(f) acknowledges that the Customer may suffer damage if any of that information is
incomplete, inaccurate, out of dale or misleading in any way.

4.2 Forming the Coniract

4.21 Agreement by Supyiier

The Supplier will sign inihis section. By signing, the Supplier is offering to enter the Contract on
the terms set out in this.document. If the Supplier does not execute this document itself, it must (if
the Customer requests) provide adequate evidence that the signatory is properly authorised to
execute this'agreement.

If the parties agree any changes to this document after the date of the Supplier's signature (but
before the Customer accepts the Supplier's offer as described below), the Supplier and Customer
will prepare a new version of the document incorporating the agreed changes, which will replace
this document. The Supplier will sign the new document, offering to enter the Contract on the
amended terms.

The Department of the Premier & Cabinet, Events Coordination and Multiplicite DPC-35-2015
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Contract Details (v2.0) Page 6 of 10

Signature of authorised representatlve :

By executmg thrs agreement the sngnator,f warrants that -
the sngnatory i5 duly authorjsed o execule thls egreement
~.on by half of the Suppller : =

ntative, in the

ne of authonsed representatl\'e { b.m.k letters)

Name of witness (block I

ced 'representat:\:e

-Address

4.2.2 Agreement by Customer

The Customer may accept the Supplier's offer either by signing in this section, or separately
conflrmlng to the Suppller in writing that the Customer accepts the Supplier’s offer.

IThe Department of the Premier & Cabinet '
by its atithorised representatlve in the
_presence of:-. ‘ “

B ................................-'J .............................

~ Name of aut

k Ietters)

Position of authorised represe

R I e N U N N N

The Department of the Premier & Cabinet, Events Coordination and Muliiplicite DPC-35-2015
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Contract Details (v2,0} i Page 7 of 10

Schedule 1 — Requirements

The Supplier must provide the Services specified below to the Custormner, in accordance with the
Requirements described in this Schedule,

1. Requirements for Services
The project includes the following three phases:

1. Research existing approaches to Australian (and international) national day/civic ceigbrations to
understand what events and activities are successful, for whom and in what context. Research
should target Queensianders of all cultural backgrounds, age groups, income ievels and
geographic areas.

2. Gather community feedback (in person, social listening or other methads) on 2016 Australia
Day celebrations throughout Queensland to understand how well events meet community
expectations and identify relevant gaps.

3. Provide recommendations for programming of the 2017 Australia’ Day celebrations across
Queensland based on in depth research conducted in phases two and three.

The following items will be required in conclusion of the project;
» adetailed report with key recommendations, verbatim guotes and a breakdown of feedback results.

e a full presentation to members of the Events Coordinaticn team with an explanation of the key
findings and recommendations included in the report.

2. Key Personnel

Not Applicable

3.  Other Requirements

Not Applicable

The Department of the Premier & Cabinet, Events Coordination and Multiplicite DPC-35-2015
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Contract Details (v2.0) . Page 8 of 10

Schedule 2 — Price and Payment Terms

2.1 Price

Stage Fees (exc! GST) Fees (incl GST)

Scoping and planning

Desktop review

Social and market
analysis

(2]

$32 450

TOTALS 14.75 $29 500

2.2 Price reviews
Not Applicable

2.3 Payment plan/milestones

The Supplier may invoice the Customer after successfui achievement of the milestones as follows:

Milestone ‘ Percentage | Invoice amount {inc GST)
On signing contract 40% $12 980

Initial findings presentation 40% $12 980

Social and market analysis 20% $6 490

24 Payment methods

Customer to pay via EFT upon receipi-of invoices from the Supplier
2,5 Discounts or rebates

Not Applicable

2.6 Other pricing information
Not Applicable

The Department of the Premier & Cabinet, Events Coordination and Multiplicite DPC-35-2015
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Contract Details (v2.0)

Page 9 of 10

Schedule 3 — Performance Measurement

This Schedule describes how the Supplier's performance will be measured under the Contract,

including:

+ Key performance indicators, minimum service level requirements, acceptance criteria or other

performance measures proposed by the Customer

= Details of how KPIs will be measured (e.q. identify reports)

« Consequences if performance is unsatisfactory.

Key Performance Indicators / Service Levels

Stage 1- To familiarise Supplier Delivery of a brief project | Receiptof project | Full refund for stage 1 of the
scoping and | and Customer with the plan. plan by due date, | project.
planning key issues far the project ] as agreed with
and outline proposed Plan should include Customer,
approach, methods and schedule of ta.SkS'
key research questions. deliverables, timeframes
and risk manageirient
plan.
Stage 2- To explore how other Delivery of phase one Delivery of phase | Full refund for stages 1 and 2 of
desktop Australian cities, and presentation. one presentation the project.
review other countries celebrate | =~ by due date, as
their national days. Cverview of deskiop agreed with
research findings. Customer.
Stage 3- Summary of social Delivery of summary Delivery of Failure to contract Supplier in
social and listening and market | presentation and final summary future.
market research findings. | report. presentation and
research Qutline of data received final report by due
across all project phagses date, as agreed
and recomniendations in with Customer.
response fo kay
reseaiciquestions,

The Department of the Premier & Cabinet, Events Coordination and Multiplicite DPC-35-2015
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Contract Details (v2.0) Page 10 of 10

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
recommendations is due early March 2016.

4.2 Escalation of issues

Any issues that should arise that cannot be settied between the parties, should be bought to the
attention of Louise Litchfield, Executive Director, Corporate Governance, Department of the Premier
and Cabinet.

4.3 Other governance or quality assurance requiremernis

Not Applicable

The Department of the Premier & Cabinet, Events Coordination and Multiplicite DPC-35-2015
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Lucas Clarke

From: Mark Verstege <mark@multiplicite.com.au>
Sent: Wednesday, 17 February 2016 11:20 AM
To: Georgia Smith

Cc: Emily Verstege

Subject: Revised report for Australia Day research
Hi Georgia,

Here is a hink to the updated report. The recommendations remain the same.

htips://www.dropbox,.com/s/7isajdagv1h1i96/2016-02-16-Final%20report-
PRESENTATION%20VERSION.pdf?d1=0

We've included analysis of the AustraliaDayQLD hashtag and keywords across Instagram, Twitter and
Facebook. | have included the detailed analysis in the data analysis appendix (pp.67-75) and the headline
numbers (repeated below) have been updated in the presentation slide.

Facebook activity was quite good.

#AustraliaDayQLD
Facebook

97% positive sentiment
50 wall posts 718 likes
18 comments

1 reply

Instagram
141

Twitter
28 tweets

If you or the team have any further questions please don't hesitate to ask.

Cheers
Mark

1
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